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HIGHLIGHTS

& HERRILN16.6% 2B 15.623(B7T Turnover increased by 6.6% to HK$1,562.3 million
EMERIBI%B(ZZTZTNF : 12.8%) Gross profit margin was 13.9% (2009: 12.8%)
2EHEF FFH16.6% 25 19,3308 7T Profit for the year increased by 16.6% to HK$93.3 million
(ZZZTNEF : 58,0008 7T) (2009: HK$80.0 million)
TR RSB RE H23.7% The return on average equity was 23.7%
(ZETNF : 21.5%) (2009: 21.5%)

EFEAHRE AER28.08I - 2FF Final dividend of HK28.0 cents per share was proposed.
BERE B FAS.0OR NI EFI%46.07E(0 Total dividend for the year amounts to HK46.0 cents,
increased by HK8.0 cents per share

BREARRBFRT421L Basic earnings per share were HK74.21 cents
(ZZEZTNF : 63.56/81L) (2009: HK63.56 cents)

URAREHEZHREEINIFALER The new food processing plant in Tai Po successfully
ZETNFNAKINFIBIRE commenced to operate in September 2009

B B
Financial Calendar

hERZEE N —ETAF+—HA=TH
Interim results announcement 30 November 2009
R ERR SR I “TTNFH-A—fmH
Paid date of the interim dividend 24 December 2009
RERB N —ZE-TFHLA\H
Annual results announcement 8 July 2010
[R5 R B B (R R AR —E-EFHAZRE
BPER —E-FFNARAE
(BEMRBEEN)
Closure of register of members for 2 September 2010 to
the proposed final dividend 6 September 2010
(both days inclusive)
REAFAE —E-TFAAKE
Annual general meeting 6 September 2010
REM B IER B 5 —E-TFAATHA
Payable date of the final dividend 15 September 2010
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the latest reporting year, the Group recorded a modest increase
in turnover of 6.6% to HK$1,562.3 million (2009: HK$1,465.5 million).
Gross profit margin rose to 13.9% while profit attributable to equity
shareholders was HK$93.3 million (2009: HK$80.0 million). Basic
earnings per share were HK74.21 cents as compared to HK63.56
cents for the last financial year.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK28.0 cents (2009:
HK28.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March 2010. Together
with the interim dividend of HK18.0 cents (2009: HK10.0 cents) per
share paid during the year, the total dividend for the year ended 31
March 2010 amounts to HK46.0 cents (2009: HK38.0 cents) per
share, representing a total distribution of approximately 62% of the
Group’s profit for the year. The proposed final dividend will be paid
on or before Wednesday, 15 September 2010 to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company at the
close of business on Monday, 6 September 2010.

RREEBMERAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong

Since the re-branding campaign of the Group in 2003 we have been
able to maintain steady sales growth, and we achieved an increase
of approximately 110% in turnover as compared to the year ended
31 March 2004.

Along with the introduction of innovative dishes, comprehensive
service training was provided to staff to ensure a high level of customer
satisfaction. Store ambiance was also significantly enhanced with the
launch of the second generation of our “Orange Concept”, a well-
received design created by the renowned interior designer, Mr Steve
Leung.

Though food costs had remained relatively stable during the first
half of the current financial year, we saw a rebound in prices in the
latter six months. Rental expenses also rose consistently throughout
the past 12 months. These two items of expenses were the major
challenges to the Group’s performance for the review year.

As a means to offset various rising costs, the Group had sought
to enhance backend production. The new central food processing
plant at the Tai Po Industrial Estate, with operation commenced from
September 2009, had helped enrich product offerings and raise
efficiency. Equipped with modern equipment and technologies, the
plant is currently supplying food to approximately 100 stores, and will
eventually be able to supply a maximum of 180 stores. The added
production capacity of the new plant had also enabled provision of
hygienic and healthy lunch boxes to primary and secondary schools.
The new business initiatives along with the greater economies of
scale enjoyed by the Group demonstrated the efficiency of the new
plant facility.
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Our new food processing plant also plays a vital role in reinforcing our
commitment to delivering quality food to customers. The ISO 22000
accreditation awarded to the Group in March 2010 highlighted our ability
to unify the requirements of various food safety management systems
applied internationally. The ISO requirements, which involve stringent
standards, are specifically designed for companies in the food industry
that are committed to surpassing regulatory standards on food safety.

In terms of bolstering the Group’s overall efficiency, progress was
made as we completed implementing phase two of the SAP Enterprise
Resources Planning (ERP) System. This allows the management to
capture important data and analytical tools to respond promptly to the
market trends as well as to decide on effective business strategy and
cost management.

Mainland China

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s operations in Mainland China achieved
sales growth of 13.9% as compared with the previous year. The positive
result is mainly attributable to the enhanced product portfolio that
appeals to local tastes and the stores set up alongside metro stations
where the public traffic is high. With consumer sentiment in Mainland
China recovering rapidly, the Group has been allocating greater effort
and resources toward developing this lucrative market.

During the year under review, the Group opened 13 new fast food stores
including 8 in Hong Kong and 5 in Mainland China. As at 31 March 2010,
the Group has a total of 101 stores in operation in Hong Kong, including
96 fast food stores, 3 Buddies Cafes and 2 specialty restaurants. As for
the Mainland China operation, we have 16 fast food stores.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year under review, the Group continued to devote time
and energy for the betterment of the society. In support of the Log
Charitable Foundation Limited and Heifer International - Hong Kong
fund raising campaigns, donation boxes were placed at most of
the Group’s Hong Kong stores to encourage contributions from the
general public. In January 2010, the management and staff took
part in the “Run-up Two ifc Charity Race 2010” organised by The
Community Chest and funds were raised to support Services for the
Mentally & Multiple Handicapped. Furthermore, the Group was also
recognised as a “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service during the year, thus underscoring our commitment to
enhancing the wellbeing of our staff and the community as a whole.

PROSPECTS

Moving forward, we will continue to prudently expand our business
presence in Hong Kong. We maintain our target of operating 100
fast food stores by the end of 2010 and will explore setting up
restaurants at locations with a potential of high customer flow and yet
demand reasonable rental rates. To attract sophisticated customers
and to enhance dining experience for customers, the interior design
of both new and renovated stores will be revamped based on the
second generation of the “Orange Concept”. The management is
confident that with an increased number of restaurants and improved
store ambiance, brand awareness and image of the Group will be
strengthened to maintain customer loyalty and lure new customers.
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The key to attracting customers, however, lies fundamentally in the
products that we deliver. This is why the Group has been dedicating
much effort to introduce innovative yet “approachable” dishes that
appeal to the larger segment of the population.

In developing new menus, our food processing plant in Tai Po can
be relied on for more production to alleviate the pressure of food
production at store level. Eventually, step up production at the plant
will bolster store efficiency and greater cost savings will be realised.

Turning to the Mainland China market, the management will
proactively expand operations to seize the opportunities emerging
from the tremendous economic growth in China. The local economy,
boosted by the RMB4 trillion stimulus plan implemented by the
central government, is recovering at a rapid pace and translated into
optimism among the public bringing greater consumption as well as
increased spending power. The Mainland China market is expected
to be another growth driver for the Group in the years to come.

Faced with surging food costs, threat of RMB appreciation and
continuously high rental rates together with the imminent legislation
for minimum wages, the management is reviewing its strategic
choices and operating systems aiming at dealing with these issues.
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APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to offer my gratitude to all staff
for their dedication and hard work during the year and express my
sincere appreciation to all fellow directors. | would also like to thank all
customers, business partners and shareholders for their continuing
support.

Lastly, | would like to give my heartfelt thanks to Mr Herald Lau Ling
Fai who had joined the Board since the listing of the Company on
the Stock Exchange in 1991 and retired on 27 August 2009 as an
Independent Non-executive Director. His contribution and guidance
throughout his tenure of service were invaluable to the success of the
Group. My special thanks also to Mr Ng Chi Keung who remains on
the Board as a Non-executive Director following his retirement from
the Group in January 2010. At the same time, | warmly welcome
Mr Peter Wan Kam To who joined the Board on 1 September 2009
as an Independent Non-executive Director and Ms Mak Yee Mei as
an Executive Director on 1 January 2010. | have no doubt that the
Group will benefit immensely from their extensive financial expertise
and experience.

AERGD
By Order of the Board

bedeck

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITEE

Executive Chairman

5B _E-ZFLANR
Hong Kong, 8 July 2010
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Financial Review

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31 March 2010, the Group had total assets of HK$721.7 million
(2009: HK$602.3 million). The Group’s working capital was HK$44.0
million (2009: HK$52.2 million), represented by total current assets
of HK$278.6 million (2009: HK$248.9 million) against total current
liabilities of HK$234.6 million (2009: HK$196.7 million). The current
ratio, being the proportion of total current assets against total current
liabilities, was 1.2 (2009: 1.3). The return on average equity was 23.7%
(2009: 21.5%), being profits attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company against the average total equity. Total equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$412.6 million (2009:
HK$374.9 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash flows
and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2010, the Group had bank
deposits and cash amounting to HK$210.0 million (2009: HK$181.1
million), representing an increase of 16.0% from 2009. Most bank
deposits and cash were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars and Renminbi.

At 31 March 2010, the Group had total bank loans of HK$45.3 million
(2009: HK$6.0 million) which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. All of the Group’s bank borrowings were subject to the
floating rate basis. The maturity of borrowings are up to 2019 with
approximately 7.9% repayable within 1 year, 67.6% repayable over
1 year but less than 5 years and 24.5% repayable after 5 years. The
unutilised banking facilities were HK$291.0 million (2009: HK$220.4
million). The gearing ratio of the Group was 11.0% (2009: 1.6%),
which was calculated based on the total bank loans over total equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.

Capital expenditure

During the year, the capital expenditure was approximately HK$159.9
million (2009: HK$60.8 million). The increase was mainly due to the
set up fee of our new central food processing plant situated at Tai Po
Industrial Estate.

13
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Financial risk management

The Group’s receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated in
HK dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation in exchange
rate is immaterial to the Group’s financial position.

For the purpose of offsetting the exposure of the interest rate
fluctuation, the Group had entered certain forward interest rate
swaps with financial institutions. The swaps were arranged to match
the maturity of the repayment schedule of certain bank loans with the
maturity over the next 6.5 years and had the fixed swap rates ranging
from 2.63% to 2.74%.

Non-current assets held for sale

Certain leasehold land and buildings and investment properties are
presented as non-current assets held for sale following the decision
of the Group’s management to dispose of these properties. Efforts to
dispose of these assets commenced in March 2010 and a sales and
purchases agreement was entered into with a third party on 22 April
2010. The sale and purchase was completed on 30 June 2010.

Charges on Group’s assets

At 31 March 2010, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounted to HK$68.8 million (2009: HK$43.3 million).

Further, the Group had pledged bank deposits of HK$2.6 million
(2009: nil) to secure a bank loan of HK$1.4 million borrowed by an
independent third party food processing contractor.

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2010
were HK$32.8 million (2009: HK$128.8 million). Included in capital
commitment outstanding at 31 March 2010 was an amount of
HK$29.9 million (2009: HK$116.6 million) for the future development
of the new central food processing plant to cope with the Group’s
long term business growth. In addition, the Group had outstanding
other commitments of HK$10.4 million at 31 March 2010 (2009:
HK$12.5 million) in respect of the contracting fee for operation of a
fast food restaurant.
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Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2010, guarantees are given to banks by the Company
in respect of mortgage loans and other banking facilities extended to
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under the guarantee
arrangement. The maximum liability of the Company at the balance
sheet date under the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn
down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantee, being
HK$79.6 million (2009: HK$36.1 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and there
is no transaction price.

Employee information

At 31 March 2010, the total number of employees of the Group was
approximately 4,400 (2009: 4,300). Employees’ remuneration is
commensurate with their job nature, qualifications and experience.
Salaries and wages are normally reviewed annually basing on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and bonus to eligible staff, basing on the performance
of the Group and the individual employee. Also, the Group has
committed to provide related training programme to improve the
quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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Executive Directors

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 58, is the Executive Chairman of the
Company. He graduated from the Parsons School of Design with a
Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course on food and
beverage management at New York University. After the completion
of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo returned to Hong Kong
and obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration. In 1981,
Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited. In 1991, he played a major
role in the listing of the Company. Mr Lo was the Managing Director
of the Company from 1991 to 1999. He was appointed the Chairman
and Chief Executive of the Company in January 2000. On 1 January
2009, Mr Lo relinquished his role as Chief Executive but remained
the Executive Chairman of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He is a director of Neblett
Investments Limited which has discloseable interests in the shares
of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Mr Chan Chee Shing, aged 56, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He joined the Group in 1995. Mr Chan received a Bachelor
of Arts Degree in Economics from the University of Manitoba, Canada
in 1977 and a Master of Business Administration Degree from the
University of East Asia, Macau in 1987. He has nearly 30 years’
experience in marketing. Before joining the Group, Mr Chan worked
as a senior executive for a restaurant group which is listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was appointed a Director
of the Company in January 1998 and was appointed Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 1 January 2009. Mr Chan is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms Mak Yee Mei, aged 43, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in January 2010. She joined the Company in 2004.
Ms Mak holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Economics, a Master
of Science Degree in Finance and a Master Degree in Business
Administration. She is an Associate Member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants as well as a Fellow Member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms Mak has extensive
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management. Prior
to joining the Company, she had held senior management positions
in several companies the securities of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Ms Mak was appointed Executive
Director, Company Secretary and Authorised Representative of
the Company on 1 January 2010. She is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Non-executive Director

Mr Ng Chi Keung*#, aged 61, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group in 1994. Mr Ng holds a Master Degree
in Business Administration and is an Associate Member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an Associate
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has over 30 years’ experience in finance and management. Prior
to joining the Company, he held senior management positions with a
number of well-known local and overseas multinational companies.
Mr Ng was appointed a Director of the Company in November 1995.
He was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company
from 1 January 2010 following his retirement from the Group. At the
same time, Mr Ng was also appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee and remains as a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin*#, aged 62, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director in 1991. He has over 30 years’ experience in
human resources development in public, commercial and educational
sectors. Mr Chan graduated from The University of Hong Kong, the
University of Strathclyde and The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a
Master of Business Administration Degree and a Master of Education
Degree. Mr Chan is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Human
Resources Management. He is currently Director of the Student
Development Services, City University of Hong Kong.

Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen*, aged 57, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director in September 2000. Dr Lau had spent over
12 years in finance related work in the private and public sectors
in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in 1987. Dr Lau holds
a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a MBA degree from the University
of Calgary in Canada. He is a member of The Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants and the Society of Certified Management
Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau is the Chairman and Chief Executive
of Giordano International Limited, a leading international apparel
retailer listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo*, aged 45, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director in November 2008. Mr Tsoi graduated from
the University of Western Ontario, Canada with an Honours degree in
Business Administration in 1986. He is an executive director and the
chief executive officer of Varitronix International Limited and is also a
non-executive director of China Windpower Group Limited, both of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Peter Wan Kam To*, aged 57, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2009. He was
also appointed as the Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee.
Mr Wan has been a practising accountant in Hong Kong for over 30
years and has extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory and
management. He was a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong and China firm. Mr Wan is currently an Independent
Director of Mindray Medical International Limited (a company listed
on the New York Stock Exchange, USA) and an Independent Non-
executive Director of China Resources Land Limited (a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and East West
Bank (China) Limited in Shanghai, PRC as well as the Chairman of
their respective Audit Committees. Mr Wan is also a Non-executive
Director of Taikang Life Insurance Company Ltd., in Beijing, PRC.
He is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

* Member of the Audit Committee
#  Member of the Remuneration Committee
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has
pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. lts registered office
is situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F, TRP
Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in the operation of fast food restaurants and
property investments. The principal activities and other particulars
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in pages 128 to 131 to the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of turnover
and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers represent less than 30 per cent of the Group’s total turnover
and purchases respectively.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 44 to 131.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$93,269,000 (2009: HK$80,022,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of HK18.0 cents (2009: HK10.0 cents) per share
was paid on 24 December 2009. The Board now recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HK28.0 cents (2009: HK28.0 cents)
per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2010.
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Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$58,000 (2009: HK$NIl).

Fixed Assets
Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 13 to
the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 27 to the financial statements. Shares were issued
during the year on exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year.

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

(appointed on 1 January 2010)

Non-executive Director

Ng Chi Keung
(re-designated from Executive Director to
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo
Peter Wan Kam To

(appointed on 1 September 2009)
Herald Lau Ling Fai

(retired on 27 August 2009)
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with Bye-Law 100 of the Company, Mr Peter Wan
Kam To and Ms Mak Yee Mei, appointed on 1 September 2009 and 1
January 2010 respectively, will hold office until the next annual general
meeting of the Company. Mr Wan and Ms Mak shall then retire at the
Company'’s forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-Laws 109 and 189(vii) of the Company,
Mr Ng Chi Keung shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and Mr Ng, being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term
of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the Bye-Laws of the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
compensation.
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(a) EARDAMER

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
As at 31 March 2010, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates in the
issued share capital of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company

BREEARBITHEER
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each

e
BITRA
BARER EN Y ARER Hitrgz #Y  HEELT
Percentage
of total
Personal Family  Corporate Other issued
interests interests interests interests Total shares
#HG Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 3,471,105 - - 51,984,279 55,455,384 44.12%
(FizE1)
(Note 1)
B Chan Chee Shing 15,000 - - - 15,000 0.01%
EEH Mak Yee Mei 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.48%
R Ng Chi Keung 262,500 - - - 262,500 0.21%
MEET : & L % 19 2 FNeblett Investments Note 1:  These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited

Limited ([Neblett]) # & * NeblettZ
—HNERGEEARNBESERN
ERMEEEENA R - BAGLE
REEAZETNNBRSERME
&= XNBARARNMITER - B
1R VE A Neblett FT5 A D FfE RS -
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(“Neblett”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of which
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trust as a discretionary
object and as the Executive Chairman of the Company, was
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Neblett.



EERERITBRAEHRBRG « BBk Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short

RiFEEHESIMRE () Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
(continued)
(b) EARPSERBERAAINER (b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited

BREEBE10THEREEEER S
Non-voting deferred shares of HK$10 each

BARES RikRER NSILEE Hitiig s wy
Personal Family Corporate Other

interests interests interests interests Total

#FHG Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 11,500 - - 279,357 290,857
(Mf7E2)
(Note 2)

Mizr2 : & & & {9 & BPengto International
Limited ([Pengto]) # & ' Pengtos
—BNRMRGEEABIBESHERN
EREMEREANLNG - BFRBLE
REERZETIHNBEESEROE
@ XEBAARMRITER - ME
BIEHE B PengtofTF B IR 5 MR -

LA RSIERTR

B bt & X[ BB RERT &) | —Ei P ER
FIN - BANR AR IR E S R B 3621547
ERFNELMBER - SRR RIA
Hip T AAARRBRBRAAE  R=-F
—ZFZA=1t—H ARAEF 5&
TR A B A A PR BC B A+ /\BR
BF L REHEA AR RS E AR
EB (AN ABFRPIEXVAFE R EE)
Rty ~ AE R (D Sk B AR AR RO (E (T L A

SL P AYAS
MIORE °

EERFMITBRABREBEARRRBERET
I R R IFEN T X B AR

B —H -

Note 2: These shares were held by Pengto International Limited
(“Pengto”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of which
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trust as a discretionary
object and as the Executive Chairman of the Company, was
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Pengto.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the section
“Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March 2010, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their
spouses or children under eighteen years of age had any other
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme are set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18 September
2002 under which the Directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Director) or any employee of the
Company or its subsidiaries or any consultant, agent, representative,
adviser, supplier of goods or services, customer, contractor, business
ally and joint venture partner to take up options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price which shall not be less than the highest of
(i) the nominal value of the share; (ii) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer; and (jii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer. As at 31 March 2010,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the share option scheme is 12,660,828 shares being
10 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at 23
August 2006, the date on which the refreshment of the mandate limit
under the share option scheme was approved by the shareholders
of the Company. The maximum entitlement for any one participant
under the share option scheme shall not in any 12 months period up
to the date of grant exceed one per cent of the shares in issue.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Directors and employees
of the Company had the following interests in options to subscribe
for shares of the Company (market value per share at 31 March 2010
was HK$8.25 (2009: HK$6.10)) granted for HK$1 consideration
under the share option scheme of the Company. The options are
unlisted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$1 each of the Company.
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Date Exercisable
granted period

EREAN
RhiEgE

Number of
options
[apsed
during
the year

ERED
FhERe

Number of
options
cancelled
during
the year

ERTTEN
RhiEgE

Number of
options
exercised
during
the year

FhERA

Number of
options
outstanding
at 31 March
2010

SRfikR

Exercise
price per
share

REERE
L
sRimE

(Closing price
per share
immediately
before date
of grant

of options

BREAE
REShNE
HnE
Weighted average
price of closing
price per share
immediately
hefore date

of exercise

of options

Ri(E2) -
Chan Cheg Shing (Director)

Kin(gs) -
Mak Yee Mei (Director)

RE(EE) -
Ng ChiKeung (Director

[E8 100000
Employee

1,000,000

400000

400,000

1March 2010

1 September 2004

RENE WHIE-EE
mAN\A BA-RZ

8 Aprl 2009 IRk
=R=1-RER
ARERANYTE

Exercisable in

five tranches of 20%

during the period

from 1 Apri 2010

to 31 March 2016

ARzE—%
-A-R%
5NF

TZA=T-REE
AR IE
Bxercisable in

five tranches of 20%
uring the period
from 1 January 2011
031 December 2016

R-5-%F
mA-BZ
5E

ZA=t-AER
AREERA%TE
Exercisable in

five tranches of 20%
uring the period
from 1 April 2010
t031 March 2016

plies St
MAZT=RE
ZENE
NAZTZAEE
L
Exercisable in

four batches during
the period from

23 September 2005
1022 September 2009

I
ZA-8

ey
BANA
8 April 2009

“EEmE
NA-E

(5000)

(100,000)

1,000,000

400,000

AE0267
HKS6.26

AH807
HK$8.08

A6
HKS5.26

B0 30570

HK$2.32

56287
HK36.28

BER0TT
HKS8.07

E6.87
HK$6.28

LR
HK$2.35

E8600T
HK$6.00
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and
the weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(p)(ii) and
note 24 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their spouses
or children under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations within the meaning of the SFO.

Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the Company
As at 31 March 2010, the interests or short positions of every person,
other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company, were as follows:

BEER R (HERTRH

BEFENRG BYgEI

Shares directly Percentage

and/or of total

indirectly held issued shares

() Neblett (FifzE) (Note) 51,984,279 41.36%
(i) RIEFRIF ()

Jumbo Easy Limited (Note) 51,984,279 41.36%

(i) Winning Spirit International Corp.(Fff5E) (Note) 51,984,279 41.36%

(iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited (Fff5E) (Note) 51,984,279 41.36%

(v) Allard Partners Limited 11,317,000 9.00%

BisE - EEERYBR R, - W HNeblett
¥ B ° NeblettZ — [ FAWinning Spirit
International Corp. 2 B A A 7] ©
£ R Winning Spirit International Corp.
Rl & — @ AAHSBC International Trustee
Limited A RFEAFHE2EBEEN R
Al 2BIBERAFRE—HHERE
EE2BHBANRE TABSER
Neblett K5 s T T B RS B &R - R
7% % B Neblett P 5 I ) B9 # 23 - HSBC
International Trustee Limited{E /5% x5
BNeblettHE7EMZFEA - R A%
B Neblett FTHEF IR B g2 ©

LB R R

B PR EEIN R —FF=A=+—
B RIBEESGOIEIBHRREMFENET
ArEL - WEBRARB RO FAARERNOE
fRERBORE

Note: These interests represented the same block of shares and were held
by Neblett. Neblett was a company wholly-owned by Winning Spirit
International Corp., which in turn was a company wholly-owned by
HSBC International Trustee Limited in the capacity of trustee. Jumbo
Easy Limited was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue
of its capacity of a discretionary object of the trust which beneficially
owned Neblett and being a wholly-owned company of Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung. HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Neblett in the capacity of trustee of
the trust which beneficially owned Neblett.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31
March 2010.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date
of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Continuing Connected Transactions

The particulars of the following continuing connected transactions
of the Group are set out below in compliance with the reporting
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(a) Tenancy agreement with Front Land Properties Limited
(“Front Land”)
As detailed in note 31(d) to the financial statements, Fairwood
Fast Food Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, leased a
property from Front Land with the lease term expired on 31 July
2009 (the “1st Transaction”) and renew the lease of the property
for a further period of three years from 1 August 2009 (the “2nd
Transaction”) for the operation of a fast food restaurant thereat.
The ultimate beneficial owners of Front Land are Mr Lo Hoi Chun,
who is a cousin of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, and his associate.
Details of the rent and deposits paid by Fairwood Fast Food
Limited relating to the property for the above transactions are

as follows:

—EBhEF —EENF —ZENF
RA—H NA—H MA—H
E-BENF E-B-%F E-FTNF
tA=+—H =A=+-—H =A=+—H
1 April 2009 1 August 2009 1 April 2008
to 31 July 2009 to 31 March 2010 to 31 March 2009

(B—%5) (B=%5)

(1st Transaction) (2nd Transaction)
BET T BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HAHE Rent for the period 655 481 1,966
—EBhE —g-2% —EThF
tA=+—H =A=+-—H =A=+—H
31July 2009 31 March 2010 31 March 2009
BET T BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Hekse Rental deposit 491 197 491
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
(b) Tenancy agreement with New Champion International

B R &R M 31 (o) st it - ARIE
REBRARAFERA—BYEME—
FHREE  HHER _ZZTAFMOANE
Ba(lE=5%]) E@HECHES
B _ZTTAFNA+BEF AR =F
(TBEWR5]) - #EELHAPengto2 & Bk
7B - MmPengtoRl @M —HAZERIBG L
AREEZHENETEREANAR -
AN BEBEEATHENES - KIE
REERARRZMECHNAS RIZS
BT

Limited (“New Champion”)

As detailed in note 31(b) to the financial statements, Fairwood
Fast Food Limited leased a property from New Champion with
the lease term expired on 9 April 2009 (the “3rd Transaction”) and
renew the lease of the property for a further three years from 10
April 2009 (the “4th Transaction”) for the operation of a fast food
restaurant thereat. New Champion is wholly beneficially owned
by Pengto, a company in turn beneficially owned by a trust
of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. In
addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of New Champion.
Details of rent and deposits paid by Fairwood Fast Food Limited
relating to the property are as follows:

—EENE —EENFE —ET)N\F
A—H AtH mA—A
E-ZENF E-E-ZF ETTNF
MARH =A=+—H =—A=+—H”
1 April 2009 10 April 2009 1 April 2008
to 9 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 to 31 March 2009
(B=R5) (ENRS)
(3rd Transaction) (4th Transaction)
BT T BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HAHE Rent for the period 33 1,404 1,247
—EENF —B-%F —ETNF
MARH =HA=+—H =A=+—H”
9 April 2009 31 March 2010 31 March 2009
BT T BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Heke Rental deposit 330 360 330

REEETRRNEIAT AR Ll F AR
BRHNBRTE  BUFRTEFDEHR
FETE SRR E R EPTETTRIER 5 ¢

() HE—BR;AEXEGERTET

() HRIE— R R R LT ER A
B4 T o e B 3T 8 = 7 R I AR
7

In compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
connection with the above continuing connected transactions,
the Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed
and confirmed that all transactions with Front Land and New
Champion have been entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business;
(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less

favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties;
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
(iiiy in accordance with the terms of agreements governing the
Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;

(iv) the aggregate value of the 1st Transaction has not exceeded
the maximum aggregate annual value of HK$655,000;

(v) the annual consideration of the 2nd Transaction is less than
HK$1 million and each of the applicable ratios is less than
2.5 per cent, hence the 2nd Transaction is exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules;

(vi) the aggregate value of the 3rd Transaction has not exceeded
the maximum aggregate value which is the lower of HK$10
million or 3 per cent of the book value of the net tangible
assets of the Group as at 31 March 2009; and

(vii) the aggregate value of the 4th Transaction has not exceeded
the maximum aggregate annual value of HK$1,404,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2010.

The Directors have requested the auditors of the Company to perform
certain agreed-upon procedures on the continuing connected
transactions and have received a letter from the auditors as required
under Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing connected transactions”, New Champion has also
agreed to grant a licence to Fairwood Fast Food Limited during the
year to use a storeroom in Hong Kong up to 9 April 2009. Details
of the licence fee and deposits paid by Fairwood Fast Food Limited
relating to the storeroom are as follows:

—e-25 —TEAS

2010 2009

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

REEFAFER Licence fee for the year 5 180
R=ZA=+—HHIZES Deposits at 31 March - 30

B EX—EipraE S - AR B REAFMNBER
BIRAFEREAANFEAREMERE - 18E5
UARBERTRFEANBENERNEEESL -

EERBaN
BERBLTERFRERARRLRBAN - &
IR — Al T A A BAAKL LSRR -

MR HESROFEAF EHES

RER » RRAFEEEFAMBARLEEE -
HEXBEARRH EHES -

BZEMRE
RRRWABIEMERAR LB REAPALHE
BRBEENRE -

MITER
AEER -_Z-ZF=-A=+—-BHRTERK
BN R EE22 -

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

During the year, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung had a service contract with
the Company which may be terminated by either party to the contract
on three months’ notice.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws and the law in Bermuda.

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group at 31 March 2010 are set out
in note 22 to the financial statements.
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Five-year Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 132 and 133 of the
annual report.

Investment Properties
Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown on
page 134 of the annual report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars of the MPF Scheme
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.



TERERERE

Corporate Governance Report

EEgEREERSKFEEER
PRRAME - R EEEEREENL -

LAPRBE

BRTIXMt kREERARRERERSE
SHREEDARERTERBEIN  ARFNE
ECT-EF-_A=t+—HIEFEACETH
R ETRAIM S 4N EE AR TR %

BIasTall) °

EFRXHRET

AR BB SRR £ AR RIBH 8R1080 1R £ <7
A (FRARRIERETESFXHNTH - £
AprAERHEHE  ARRZBEFER - K
ERBE_T—TF=-A=+—HIEFERY
EETIRESTRIPTR] AR ©

EEE
EFECARANRIEHBNEREE  ARES
REERRFNEME  WEBS|IERIEEAR
AR HABAREARTRINEE -
EREF HAARREERON @ EIIE
HIRTE °

EXSUNEARARERFHNRRE - 21
EREE—VRRENEE  ERERBELEE
& NBPEE  MBER  EEZEREMBE
RUBREEEEE -

ARRERFELIEREREEXAATRES
MER - ERARMEMEHRNER RBET -
HITERERMBESACIBRESTSE S
LR ZERSHBEER  WIZKRERS
ASEMEN EFAREENBER NTERE
EERLERRE  SRBUEXER  FHE
FRBRARREH

The Board is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance practices to safeguard the interests of shareholders and
to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 March 2010 save and except that the Chairman and/or
Managing Director of the Company are not subject to retirement
by rotation, details of which and the reason for the deviations are
stated below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules for securities transactions by Directors of the
Company. Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors
of the Company have confirmed their compliance with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2010.

Board of Directors

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors have taken decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control,
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material matters
of the Company. With the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner. Directors may
choose to take independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon making request to
the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Executive Committee which
comprises the three Executive Directors and the senior management
of the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the above-
mentioned officers.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

(appointed on 1 January 2010)

Non-executive Director

Ng Chi Keung
(re-designated from Executive Director to
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo
Peter Wan Kam To
(appointed on 1 September 2009)

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Biographical details of the Directors of the
Company and the relevant relationships among them, if any, are set
out on pages 16 to 18 of this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2010 and attendance record of individual Directors is set out below:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mak Yee Mei

(appointed on 1 January 2010) 2/2
Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung

(re-designated from Executive Director to

Non-executive Director on 1 January 2010) 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin 3/4

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 4/4
Peter Wan Kam To

(appointed on 1 September 2009) 3/3
Herald Lau Ling Fai

(retired on 27 August 2009) 11

All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual
and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The statement of the auditors
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Company is set out on pages 42 and
43 in the independent auditor’s report. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, confirm that there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Board is empowered under the Bye-Laws of the Company (the
“Bye-Laws”) to appoint any person as a Director of the Company
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Though
the Company has not set up a nomination committee, the Board as
a whole will carry out the selection process by making reference to
the qualifications, experience, integrity and time commitment of the
proposed candidates.

According to the Bye-Laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual general
meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election; and (i) at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors (other than any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) for the time being or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office provided that each Director (other
than any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing Director)
including those appointed for a specific term shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by the shareholders in accordance with
the Bye-Laws.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-Laws, the Chairman and the Managing Director
of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation. The
Board considers that the exemption of both the Chairman and the
Managing Director (Chief Executive Officer) of the Company from
such retirement by rotation provisions would provide the Group
with strong and consistent leadership, efficiency usage of resources
and enables effective planning, formulation and implementation of
long-term strategies and business plans. The Board believes that it
would be in the best interest of the Company for such Directors to
continue to be exempted from the retirement by rotation provisions.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference which are in line with the CG Code and
are posted on the Company’s website and available to shareholders
upon request. The Remuneration Committee comprises two
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin
and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and one Non-executive Director,
Mr Ng Chi Keung. Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
determining the remuneration packages of the Directors and other
related matters. During the year, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review the remuneration policy of the Group.

KB FEIT The attendance record of individual members is as follows:
HERE SR

No. of meetings attended/held
BYEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
PR ER 4F* Joseph Chan Kai Nin* 1/1
2 2 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 1/1
EHITEE Non-executive Director
RE58 Ng Chi Keung 1/1

* Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
FHEEEER
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The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director, Mr Ng
Chi Keung (appointed on 1 January 2010) and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Mr Tony Tsoi
Tong Hoo and Mr Peter Wan Kam To (appointed on 1 September
2009). The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Peter Wan Kam To
and meets at least twice a year.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant or
unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal auditor or
external auditors before submission to the Board for approval. It is
also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature of the external
audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures. The Audit Committee has
adopted written terms of reference which are in line with the CG
Code and are posted on the Company’s website and available to
shareholders upon request.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of external
auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their independence
and the nature and scope of the audit; to review the internal audit
programme, findings and management’s responses; and to evaluate
the system of internal controls and risk management of the Group.
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Audit Committee (continued)

BIKEMEELRSEAT The attendance record of individual members is as follows:
ﬁﬁ%/}\%&/a n?h/A%i
No. of meetings attended/held
BAFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
Eak e Peter Wan Kam To *

(RZZEZNFNA—BEZRMT) (appointed on 1 September 2009) 11
PRERF Joseph Chan Kai Nin 1/2
BERx Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 2/2
Bz Herald Lau Ling Fai

(RZZEZNFNAZTHERHRME) (retired on 27 August 2009) 11
3F$M‘T§$ Non-executive Director

?ﬁ Ng Chi Keung A

(E’\ —ZEF—F—REZMT) (appointed on 1 January 2010) N/A

* Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the fees paid/payable to the
auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
auditors of the Company were as follows:

RS £

Nature of services Amount

BT T

HK$'000

ZEENG  —E-TERHEEENE Review fee for 2009/10 interim results 405

TETNGF T TERFEEERE Audit fee for 2009/10 final results 2,420
BIEREBE S RREHIEEZRE Non-audit services which covered provision of

tax compliance services 330

Haza Total 3,155

40 AWREREERAF
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Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes a well defined management structure
with limits of authority which is designed for the achievement of
business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, ensure maintenance of proper books and records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant legislations and
regulations. The Board conducts regular reviews of the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations communications. Designated executive directors
and senior management maintain regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. The Board also welcomes the views of
shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages them
to attend shareholders’ meetings to communicate any concerns
they might have with the Board or management directly.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial information
electronically.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Fairwood Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 44 to 131, which comprise
the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

8 July 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

BEZZ-ZF=ZRA=T—-HLFE (LUBEEIR)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-ZF —ZETNF
2010 2009
FaE Frx T
Note $°000 $'000
—E 3 Turnover 38&12 1,562,348 1,465,503
SHERAR Cost of sales (1,344,519) (1,277,361)
EF Gross profit 217,829 188,142
=N Other revenue 4 708 3,202
EAhPriS#5E Other net income 4 4,974 7,478
HEEA Selling expenses (27,112) (26,351)
TR E A Administrative expenses (81,035) (72,147)
BT EEREREFE Net impairment losses on fixed assets 13(d) (7,389) (4,142)
REMEGE Valuation gains/(losses) on
B&/ (BE) investment properties 13(b) 3,743 (1,370)
1R Profit from operations 111,718 94,812
BERA Finance costs 5(a) (1,332) (199)
BRBE AR Profit before taxation 5 110,386 94,613
Frig®i Income tax 6(a) (17,117) (14,591)
RA TR RES Profit for the year attributable to
ARE R F equity shareholders of the Company 93,269 80,022
SRER Earnings per share 11
AR Basic 74.211licents  63.561llicents
i3 Diluted 74.07flicents  63.471{licents

FE2E F1S 1AM B AT B RERA — 2
Do EAARDBIERSRRELNR S NFIBED
R0 -

The notes on pages 52 to 131 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
are set out in note 10.

44 FREREERAE
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE—2-TFE=A=1— A LFECUEHIIR)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-%F —TTNF
2010 2009
Frx T
$’000 $'000
RN AR B R E( Profit for the year attributable to
AEERmA equity shareholders of the Company 93,269 80022
AEFEH A2 E K= Other comprehensive income for the
(BrBi&): year (after tax):
MERE AR Exchange differences on translation of
([EDHBAF financial statements of the People’s
B ImERMIER =5 Republic of China (the “PRC”) subsidiaries 151 836
HREHEERMEEA Revaluation gain recognised upon
A YRR transfer from property held for
HHARK own use to investment property - 241
e LI 1,077
RN TR R SRR Total comprehensive income for the year
AEEEHEINZEEE attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 93,420 81,099

SE527 131 E MY I 5 JB AN B 75 R 19 — 8P

N

4 o

statements.

The notes on pages 52 to 131 form part of these financial
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Consolidated B

alance Sheet

RZZE-FEF=ZA=+—H8 (LUBEIIR)
At 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-FF —ZETNF
2010 2009
B 5E Fr Tt
Note $°000 $'000
FREBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets 13(a)
—REME — Investment properties 42,078 41,135
—H %  #2RMEMA - Other property, plant and equipment 348,928 266,463
— KL ERFIEE A - Interests in leasehold land held for
T E R own use under operating leases 7,886 -
398,892 307,598
BT EEMNTENR Prepayment for fixed assets - 3,683
GES Goodwill 14 1,001 1,001
BEfHEeZS Rental deposits paid 40,861 38,742
HibemEE Other financial asset 16 2,341 2,341
REHIBEE Deferred tax assets 25(b) 37 35
L MA832 353,400
REBEE Current assets
BBEHFENIERSEE Non-current assets held for sale 17 7,247 -
FE Inventories 18(a) 22,168 29,232
7 AT B R L i R i Trade and other receivables 19 39,148 36,359
ALY Bl A BARR IR Current tax recoverable 25(a) 8 2,239
IRITF IR Bank deposits and cash 20 210,042 181,098
... 278613 248,928
REBEE Current liabilities
JE AT R SRT EL A FE A5 5K Trade and other payables 21 223,486 190,375
RITE R BN > Current portion of bank loans 22 3,589 350
JFEAT A AT TR Current tax payable 25(a) 3,219 552
A Provisions 26 4,335 5,489
... 284620 196,766
RBRERE ] Netcurrentassets ... 43984 52162
EELBERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 487,116 405,562

46 KREREERAF
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2010 2009
BisE T FIt
Note $°000 $000
ERBARL Non-current liabilities
RITEN Bank loans 22 41,676 5,670
EIEFIIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 25(b) 8,139 2,962
B EES Rental deposits received 1,126 675
R Provisions 26 23,585 21,365
L 74526 80672
EEFHE Net assets 412,590 374,890
BEARMGFEE Capital and reserves 27
[N Share capital 125,687 125,587
i Reserves 286,903 249,303
AN TSR R Total equity attributable to equity
R HARE shareholders of the Company 412,590 374,890

EEeN —T-TFELF\BRETFFAEE ©  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

8 July 2010.
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Chan Chee Shing
HITEE TTAEEL
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

EE2E FITAMMEB AT FHRRAO—E  The notes on pages 52 to 131 form part of these financial
7 e statements.

N
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EEEER
Balance Sheet

RZZE-FEF=ZA=+—H8 (LUBEIIR)
At 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-ZF —ZETNF
2010 2009
M Fx T
Note $’000 $’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
RIMBREMEAE  Investmentsin subsidiaes 15 310212 364,317
REBEE Current assets
7 Uk B RN EL A B LR Trade and other receivables 19 62,119 35,707
RITF AR Bank deposits and cash 20 205 158
e 62,524 35865
REEE Current liabilities
FENBEARMAMMNS  Tradeand other payables 21 29,214 29,209
RBRERE 0000 Netcurrentassets 33110 6,656
EEFE Net assets 343,322 360,973
BEAXRMRE Capital and reserves 27
f& s Share capital 125,687 125,587
(Bt Reserves 217,635 235,386
A Total equity 343,322 360,973

EEeN_TTFELAN\BRETFAEE © Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

8 July 2010.
EHE R A& A
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Chan Chee Shing
HITERE TR
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

FE2E FI3TEMNM B A HRERA —3  The notes on pages 52 to 131 form part of these financial
e statements.

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE_Z-ZF=ZRA=T-HILFEEUBEIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ARRRERRESSS
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
THREE
ke RGEE EARE EXRE NERRE REEH Bg
Land and
buildings
Share Share  Capital Exchange revaluation Retained
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
i T o T n n T n
Note $/000 $000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $1000
RZZEN\ENA-H At 1 April 2008 127,106 - 1,463 (4,484) - 245808 369,953
REERE AR TR Shares issued under share option scheme — 27(c)() 200 265 - - - - 465
¥ER Issue expenses - ] - - - - 6)
LEERENRS Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 100b) - - - - - (16700 (51,670
FEREERNRE Dividend declared in respect
of the current year 10(a) - - - - (12549 (12549
WEREERNR AERNRS Equity-settled share-based transactions - 187 1205 - - 496 1988
EORakH Repurchase of own shares
-BfEE - par value paid o7 (1,719) - - - - - 19
-BITRERRAME - premium and transaction costs paid 27(0)i - (219) - - - (12350 (12,569)
TERRANGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 836 U1 8002 81,099
RZZENEZA=1-H At31 March 2009 125,587 25 2668 (3649) 21 249817 374890
RZETNEN-A At 1 April 2009 125,587 25 2668 (3,648) 241 249817 374,890
REERE AR TR Shares issued under share option scheme~ 27(c)) 100 133 - - - - 233
Y8R Issue expenses - ] - - - - “
LEEMENRS Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 100b) - - - - - (35192 (35192)
TEREERNRE Dividend declared in respect
of the current year 10(a) - - - - - (22624 (22,624)
WEREENDRE AERNRS Equity-settled share-based transactions - 9% 1, - - - 187
TERRANGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 151 - 03269 93420
RZE-BEZA=1-H At31 March 2010 125,687 450 4439 (3497) 21 285210 412,590

F522 FI3TENM B A HRERA —38  The notes on pages 52 to 131 form part of these financial
e statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-T—

BEZA=Z1T-HLEFE (BUB%IIR)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—B-BE ZTZTNE
2010 2009
iz Fr Fr T Tr
Note $000 $°000 $000 $000
L&z Operating activities
B ATRMN Profit before taxation 110,386 94,613
FARIER - Adjustments for:
-EEEENE - Depreciation of fixed assets 54,232 49,324
—EEHERERRN - Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
TSR REE held for own use under operating leases 212 -
-EEEEREBBTE ~ Net impairment losses on fixed assets 7,389 4142
- HERROREER - Impairment losses on other receivables 205 -
—URRnBEFAEEN — Change in fair value of other financial
ﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬂﬁﬁ/ B fEH) assets/liabilties at fair value through
AREEED profit or loss 116 78
-MEER - Interest expense 1,216 121
—FIEKA - Interest income (708) (3,202)
-REETEERBTE ~ Net loss on disposal of fixed assets 2,690 6,076
~RENERE(ER)/BE - Valuation (gains)/losses on investment
properties (3,743) 1,370
—DERERRURG B ~ Equity-settled share-based payment
EHAER expenses 1,867 1,888
BEELEBALERN Operating profit before changes in
working capital 173,862 154,410
FERD,/ () Decrease/(increase) in inventories 7,064 (818)
BRSEEEM Increase in rental deposits paid (1,251) (5,107)
FEUTBR SR E B ULZR (320) /782> (Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (3,943) 1,193
ER B REMERFIEM,/ (L) Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 19,808 (17,034)
Bl RERD Decrease in rental deposits received (293) (1,481)
RERBERELN Increase in provision for long service payments 600 790
HEB 2 BERARERERD Decrease in provision for reinstatement costs
for rented premises (1,105) (1,000)
CEEBELNRS Cash generated from operations 194,742 130,953
B E Interest received 770 3,209
ERHE Interest paid (1,214) (136)
ERTE Tax paid
-BNEENEH — Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (9,722) (18,996)
—RREANEH - Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 2,678 286
LETBHRENALRELE Net cash generated from operating
activities carried forward 187,254 115,316

50 RPEEEBRAR
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N
D

73 °

Net cash generated from operating
activities brought forward

Investing activities

Investment in structured notes

Maturity of structured notes

Payment for purchase of fixed assets

Net proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities

Proceeds from shares issued under share
option scheme

Expenses incurred in connection with the
issue of shares

Payment for repurchase of shares

Dividends paid

Repayment of bank loans

Drawdown of bank loans

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

The notes on
statements.

“ETNF

T
$000

(17,957)
54,883
(74,072)

61

465

(14,088
(64,219
(3,000
5,670

20

2009
T
$'000

115,316

(37,085)

(75,380)
2,851

178,052

195
181,098

pages 52 to 131 form part of these financial
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These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual
HongKongFinancial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2010 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 1(g)); and
— derivative financial instruments (see note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in
the next year are discussed in note 34.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(K)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 1(k)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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The Group’s other financial asset represents a structured note
which is classified as loans and receivables. Purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on the trade date.

Structured note includes a bank note which is a non-derivative
financial asset with fixed or determinable payments that is not
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note

1(K)-

Financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 1(s)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(i)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied for other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 1(i).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(k)):

— land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the land and
buildings cannot be measured separately at the inception
of the lease and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease; and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Leasehold land and
buildings situated thereon
Leasehold improvements

30 - 50 years

the remaining term of the
tenancy leases

the remaining term of the
tenancy leases

10% — 20% per annum

15% per annum

25% per annum

10% per annum

Air-conditioning plant -

Furniture and equipment -
Motor vehicles -
Computer system -
Others -

No depreciation is provided on initial purchases of cutlery and
utensils which are capitalised. Costs of subsequent replacements
are charged to profit or loss in the year when the expenditure is
incurred. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

()  Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see
note 1(g)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the
fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of
the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

(il Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of other assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges (continued)

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(k)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and other financial
asset carried at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables and other financial asset carried
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.
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(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and other financial
asset carried at amortised cost (continued)

If any such evidence exists, impairment of trade and other
receivables and other financial asset carried at amortised cost
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively where
financial assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

— investments in subsidiaries; and
- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
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value. Cost is calculated using the weighed average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the year in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the year the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 1(r)(), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost except where the payables are interest-
free loans from related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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(i)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On the vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

RREEEBRAF
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Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specific payments to reimburse
the beneficiary to the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specific debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group or the Company issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
1(r)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.
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(i)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

0

(i)

)

(v)

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to customers.
Revenue is after deduction of any sale discounts.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Other income is recognised in the income statement on an
accrual basis.

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while that
for subsidiaries which operate in the PRC is Renminbi. The
presentation currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollars.
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Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Balance sheet items, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of operations outside Hong Kong acquired on or after 1 January
2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
the exchange reserve.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that operations is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.
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A non-current asset is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the asset
is available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets is brought up-to-date in accordance
with the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-
current assets (except for certain assets as explained below), are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the Group and the
Company are concerned are investment properties. Investment
properties, even if held for sale, would continue to be measured
in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in
profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member of
such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals;
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in
(i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(RBAHBAI - LUBHESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 ERHBRRYERT 2 Changes in Accounting Policies
ERGMASREM T —EHAFNLEL The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of
BT BB R EERDFFRRE - & amendments to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that are first
LR MZRBEASBMNMARAGNENS effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
FTAEEEEN - R EASENERE Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to
R RIS LT the Group’s financial statements:
- (BAYBREEADFESHE—KE -  HKFRS 8, Operating segments
wan-il
- (BAGHEADFEIR(ZZEZLFL - HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial statements
1B ——T B I53RET M3 ]
- (BEBUBREEIDHZCE(ZZTEN - Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)
F)
- (BEGFEADSE27TRETT—FE - Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
IR R MBS B HREK KRB A financial statements — cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
A HEEHERHEARNEE jointly controlled entity or associate
R
- (BEAUBMEER)ETRIET— - Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures
[ERTA : 5% - WEeRMT AME — improving disclosures about financial instruments
=]
- (BEBFERDFERFR(ZEZTLFL -~ HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs
BRI —TBEXR]
- (BEAUBMEEA)E2RIET— - Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment — vesting
[ARR D BEMHZ T - BB IREFE conditions and cancellations
gizll
- (AR (HBRYBREREZE®)Z - HK(FRIC) 13, Customer loyalty programmes
B)YZ13— I &P asEstEl
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The adoption of Improvements to HKFRSs (2008), Interpretation
HK(IFRIC) 13, HKAS 23 (revised 2007) and Amendments to
HKFRS 2 do not have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position. The impact of the remainder
of these developments is as follows:

— HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the
way that the Group’s chief operating decision maker regards
and manages the Group, with the amounts reported for
each reportable segment being the measures reported to
the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of assessing segment performance and making decisions
about operating matters. This contrasts with the presentation
of segment information in prior years which was based on
a disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements into
segments based on related products and services and on
geographical areas. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted
in the presentation of segment information in a manner
that is more consistent with internal reporting provided to
the Group’s most senior executive management (see note
12). Corresponding amounts have been provided on a basis
consistent with the revised segment information.

— Asaresult of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), details of
changes in equity during the period arising from transactions
with equity shareholders in their capacity as such have been
presented separately from all other income and expenses
in a revised consolidated statement of changes in equity.
All other items of income and expense are presented in
the consolidated income statement, if they are recognised
as part of profit or loss for the period, or otherwise in a
new primary statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Corresponding amounts have
been restated to conform to the new presentation. This
change in presentation has no effect on reported profit or
loss, total income and expense or net assets for any period
presented.
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— Asaresult ofthe adoption of the amendmentsto HKFRS 7, the
financial statements included expanded disclosures in note
28 about the fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
instruments, categorising these fair value measurements into
a three-level fair value hierarchy according to the extent to
which they are based on observable market data. The Group
has taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out
in the amendments to HKFRS 7, under which comparative
information for the newly required disclosures about the fair
value measurements of financial instruments has not been
provided.

—  Theamendments to HKAS 27 have removed the requirement
that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits should be
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment in the investee, rather than as income. As a
result, as from 1 April 2009 all dividends receivable from
subsidiaries, whether out of pre- or post-acquisition profits,
will be recognised in the Company’s profit or loss and the
carrying amount of the investment in the investee will not
be reduced unless that carrying amount is assessed to be
impaired as a result of the investee declaring the dividend.
In such cases, in addition to recognising dividend income in
profit or loss, the Company would recognise an impairment
loss. In accordance with the transitional provisions in the
amendment, this new policy will be applied prospectively to
any dividends receivable in the current or future periods and
previous periods have not been restated.

The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments.

Turnover represents the sales value of food and beverages sold
to customers and rental income. An analysis of turnover is as
follows:

—ETNF
2009

Tt
$°000

& Sale of food and beverages 1,456,683

8,820
1,465,503
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4 Other Revenue and Net Income

—E-2F —EENF
2010 2009
T Tt
$°000 $'000
Hgl A Other revenue
FMEIA Interest income 708 3,202
Hityfris#8 Other net income
RE KIS RTIER Compensation received on early termination
HH1E of lease - 7,000
REBETEEBEFE Net loss on disposal of fixed assets
— IR R ILEER — from early termination of lease - (2,661)
—HEARXBBRET —in the normal course of business (2,690) (3,415)
RYE=FENEAN Compensation received on granting right of
—HBEETIRE access to a third party for construction work
i U B B 1E performed in part of a restaurant 3,481 2,135
BERRBEERES Electric and gas range incentives 2,186 1,948
S S RE T Profit on sale of redemption gifts 519 867
Ht Others 1,478 1,604
4,974 7,478

5 KRAET

BBADENEING, GrA):

5 Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

i —EENE
2010 2009
Fi F7
$’000 $000
(a) BRERKA : (a) Finance costs:
AR BEGTABRN Change in fair value of other financial
HitteBmAE Q& asset/liabilities at fair value through
AR BEEE profit or loss 116 78
IRITERF B Interest on bank loans 1,216 121
1,332 199
(o) BIRA : (o) Staff costs:
FEHRFGRIK Contributions to defined contribution
HEGS retirement plan 17,901 16,750
AR AE E A9 DARR Equity-settled share-based payment
HAEEWRNER expenses 1,867 1,888
e TERHEMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 404,387 376,802
424,155 395,440
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5 MRRAET(E)

5 Profit Before Taxation (continued)

—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
P Tt
$°000 $’000
(c) HAIER : (c) Other items:
FERA(GE) Cost of inventories (Note) 437,364 425,275
BEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 54,232 49,324
S EREE R Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
T AR S 8 held for own use under operating leases 212 -
ZERB < Auditor’s remuneration 2,825 2,602
E b e WK R R E B 1R Impairment losses on other receivables 205 -
VIERNKETREER Operating lease charges on properties
—REBERKE — Minimum lease payments 212,329 200,294
—EHE - Contingent rentals 17,457 17,845
FEWEE Rental receivable
—BEYEREE N — Investment properties, less direct
270,0007T outgoings of $270,000
(ZZ2ZNF - (2009: $287,000)
287,0007T) (3,457) (3,719)
—HiMEgEEE — Other operating sub-leases (3,510) (4,814)
HEREHINEAR Cost of subsequent replacement of
FRMME A cutlery and utensils 10,029 7,074
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6 HFekaEFEMTHMRER 6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement

() ZRERZRMTHFIES : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
—E-FF —EENF

2010 2009

FT T

$°000 $'000

AEHIE—FBFEH  Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

NEF LM Provision for the year 12,037 13,423
AT RT Over-provision in respect of prior years (95) (513)
L 11,942 12,910
AEABIE— Current tax - PRC
REF AR Provision for the year - -
LATE 5 E 248 3 Over-provision in respect of prior years - (192)
T (192)_
ELERE Deferred tax
ERERMELEMBE  Origination and reversal of temporary differences 5175 . 1878
17,117 14,591
—E-TFEENEBNEHEEZIRANF The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2010 is calculated
EREEEFBARNIA165% (ZEE N at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
F 16.5%) MK E - BINIB R R the year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged similarly
MIBLABBABIRE AR TR R E - at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant

countries.
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6

(b) FAIEHHMETHERIZERAREAEN

FeWKSRMTHMBRE) 6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

R ¢ at applicable tax rates:
—E-=F ZETNF
2010 2009
Fr Fx
$°000 $’000
PR 5% AT 7 Profit before taxation 110,386 94,613
LRI AERE R Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated
BERRESREIN at the rate applicable to profits in the tax
AT R ERBA jurisdictions concerned
BN E B E IR 18,214 15,611
TR RS AR IESZ 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,100 1,220
BAFFRRARTIERE  Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,195) (1,786)
REEARERM AN Tax effect of current year’s tax losses
FEERNBIATE not recognised 16 191
REEFREBER Tax effect of previously unrecognised tax
ERR AR EE losses utilised this year
COpTREZ 2 -
RERNEMERER Tax effect of other temporary differences
WIIER & not recognised 63 89
EFEEHBE Over-provision in prior years (95) (705)
Hith Others 16 (29)
ERBAX Actual tax expense 17,117 14,591
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7 ETEHMe

7 Directors’ Remuneration

RIEBBCRBGDDEIGURII RN ES

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

BT Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
e 2 DRBA  RINGHE —2-TF
EZe AEWAE  MERL ERNXA i “gm
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Share-based scheme 2010
fee in kind bonus  payments contributions Total
T T T T T Tr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
(HizE()
(note (iv))
HiTEE Executive Directors
BRBLE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 120 4,525 2,840 - 12 7,497
REREE Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,389 1,135 395 12 3,051
BamME Ms Mak Yee Mei 30 943 260 12 12 1,257
REREE () Mr Ng Chi Keung (Note () 98 1,009 430 - 9 1,546
FHEE Non-executive Director
RGBT (FH) Mr Ng Chi Keung (Note () 32 - - - - 32
BUNNTEE Independent
Non-executive Directors
REFRAE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 - - - - 160
LR Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 130 - - - - 130
ERRAE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 140 - - - - 140
FRELE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 110 - - - - 110
BIZ B 5 (Fi) Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai (Note (i) 70 - - - - 70
1,010 7,866 4,665 407 45 13,993
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7 EEMeE) 7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
- 4:1 ks BiGHE —ZEAE
EEhe AEYNE BERL ERNIA e am
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary ~Share-based scheme 2009
fee in kind bonus  payments contributions Total
T T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
(PzE(v)
(note (iv))
HITEE Executive Directors
BRATAE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 120 4,466 1,500 - 12 6,098
BREMLE Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,142 250 201 12 1,725
REBEAE Mr Ng Chi Keung 130 1,093 250 201 12 1,686
BUHRITEE Independent
Non-executive Directors
BEELE Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai 160 - - - - 160
BREFRE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 - - - - 160
TRERE Mr Peter Lee Sheung Yam
(K (ii)) (Note (i) 60 - - - - 60
BFER L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 130 - - - - 130
BERLE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 60 - - - - 60
940 6,701 2,000 402 36 10,079
Hl): RZZE—EF—A—HBHEWTESH Note (i): Re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive
FRIERITES Director on 1 January 2010
i) RZETEAFNAZT+ERERE Note (ii): Retired on 27 August 2009
i) 0 RZZEZENFENAZTNBRME Note (iii): Retired on 28 August 2008
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7 EEM&E)

PEEEMY) : AR BERO S ZIERBEA AR
MBS IR TESERENMGE
BE - ELBERENE AL T
1) i) P B 51 748 5 [ AR AR AR 3£ T A 52
NRBOEFTHEE - WIRIEZA
B - BEHESEE M5
PRETHEE TAREOAENEFER
ST BERIE RO R -

ERELEYNENFE  BEMK
TREENEZERMEE  #NE
FeWMEPBAERT S —EAMM T
24 °

EEMe&AL 8
ERfuMessfmALH  OL(ZZFFH
F=)AEE  BENMEFTEHNH
7 e HBR— (L (ZTTAF W) ALH

7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
Note (iv): Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share

options granted to the Directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in note 1(p)(ii) and, in
accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity
instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option schemes” in the Directors’ report and
note 24.

Individuals with Highest Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2009:
three) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note
7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other

Biegazamn T ¢ individual (2009: two individuals) is as follows:
—E-EF —ZETNF
2010 2009
Tt Tt
$°000 $'000
e kEMmNe Salaries and other emoluments 1,685 1,748
LARR 1 BEMER S Share-based payments 204 23
RIRET B Retirement scheme contributions 12 24
1,901 1,795

ZA(ZZENF B MEREALH

The emoluments of the individual (2009: two individuals) with the

B LA T 8 EIA - highest emoluments are within the following bands:
—E2-FF —TTNF
2010 2009
A AE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
Z7t21,000,0007T $0 - $1,000,000 - 2
1,000,0017c%1,500,0007T $1,000,001 — $1,500,000 - -
1,500,0017T%2,000,0007T $1,500,001 — $2,000,000 1 -
1 2
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8 BEBM&AX(E) 8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments (continued)
RER AEBUTEREANEERRSR During the year, no emoluments (2009: $Nil) were paid by the
EEFMALTINME(ZEENF: T Group to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals
JC) v LARR S| PN EE AN S B sk AR YE B AR as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
SEEr RSB RHE - compensation for loss of office.

9 FAFESRRELRT 9 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the

Company
AAREEREELGEEMNEE—EE The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
PN Q BB 7 R /945,000 ( —Z 2 & Company includes a loss of $45,000 (2009: $1,084,000) which
JL4F + 1,084,0007T ) E518 © has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
RAT) L ARFE R & BRI EER - Recondiliation of the above amount of the Company’s profit for
the year:
—s-%F -TTNF
2010 2009
ST T
$°000 $°000
AR BB Amount of consolidated profit attributable to
ROME AR SR PR equity shareholders dealt with in the
REEAeTRE Company’s financial statements (45) (1,084)
B[O Frih B B 2 Bl i e Write back of impairment losses on interest in
EOVERIEN 5= subsidiaries 38,114 29,278
AR RIAF R Company’s profit for the year
(Kt7¥E27(0)) (note 27(b)) 38,069 28,194
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10 B2 10 Dividends
(2 BARFERNIAARERRERENER (a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

—E-ZF —EThEF
2010 2009
Fx T
$’000 $000
EEIR&EZ A HIRE Interim dividend declared and paid of
BR18.0M(ZFZ N4 : 10.01L) 18.0 cents (2009: 10.0 cents) per share 22,624 12,549
REEEHBREZED IR Final dividend proposed after the
REARR B H%28.01L balance sheet date of 28.0 cents
ZEZNF : 28.01l) (2009: 28.0 cents) per share 35,192 35,164
57,816 47,713
RER BRE#ED RO REARE W RELS The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not
HAmRRAE- been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

(b) BALE—BTHEE > YRANFERERSE (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
RN A RERBRRNRE attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year

—E-ZF —ZZETNF
2010 2009
=P T
$°000 $'000
BRE—UHBEE - Final dividend in respect of the
WA F F AR previous financial year, approved and
XATHAREAAR S paid during the year, of 28.0 cents
Hhg28.0Ml(ZZEZ 4 : 29.01L) (2009: 29.0 cents) per share 35,192 36,547
BRE—UHBEE - Special dividend in respect of the
WA ANF Z B R A previous financial year, approved and
EokSalligsRai el paid during the year, of nil cent
(ZZZTh4F 1200 (2009: 12.0 cents) per share - 15,123
35,192 51,670
REE_ZENF=-_A=+—BLEFEN In respect of the final dividends for the year ended 31 March
AR BT - £ LFEMBRE T AR 2009, there is a difference of $28,000 between the final dividends
BEMARARSEARNFEI AR TREE disclosed in the last annual financial statements and amount
2 328,000 ZE  WEEME R approved and paid during the year which represents dividends
Y ERERNBFPELFEIAITER attributable to new shares issued upon the exercise of share

A T A ZE )R AR FE A VAR, options before the closing date of the register of members.
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11 SREF

(a) BREXER
BREAEFESRBAFENAQR LR
% 4 25 B SR P 34 193,269,000 T ( — 2
JLEF £ 80,022,0007T) © AR B EITEE
% HY AN S 15 $125,679,0008% ( —ZEE A,
£ 1 125,908,0000%)stE T ¢

11 Earnings Per Share

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
$93,269,000 (2009: $80,022,000) and the weighted average
of 125,679,000 ordinary shares (2009: 125,908,000 shares) in
issue during the year, calculated as follows:

LIBARA M9 E Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
—2-%F —TTNF
2010 2009
BHEE e B
Number of Number of
shares shares
T TFh
’000 000
RUA—H®HEETEBR  Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 125,587 127,106
TR ERENTE Effect of share options exercised 92 94
BRI E Effect of shares repurchased - (1,292)
R=A=+—HMIEEAE  Weighted average number of ordinary
iRk shares at 31 March 125,679 125,908

(b) BRBEHERER
BRECE R T IR AR 7m0 S
% ZR FE {5 % 793,269,000t — T T N,
£ :80,022,0007T ) * LA K2 gk & B AX A hn
159 81125,913,0000% ( — E & h, 4 -
126,088,000 st & 40T
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(b) Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
of $93,269,000 (2009: $80,022,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 125,913,000 shares (2009:
126,088,000 shares), calculated as follows:



12

BRET(E,
BREERR (&)

AR 0 NIRE T B (58

11 Earnings Per Share (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

—E-2fF —ETNF
2010 2009

R E B IR EE
Number of Number of
shares shares
T F iz

’000 000

R=ZA=1t—HmEEK
pillle S SE

R SRBEA RN
B BT EHER
BITERBRNEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

at 31 March 125,679 125,908
Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares

under the Company’s share option scheme

for nil consideration 234 180

R=A=+t—H&OEBRK

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

g E (H5E) at 31 March (diluted) 125,913 126,088
PEEwE 12 Segment Reporting
REEZEBME RS PENEEEEKLF The Group manages its businesses by two geographical
BIERE)REIRER - WIRREm KR E divisions, namely Hong Kong restaurant and the PRC restaurant,
ZEDEMEMESE - StEXRAKES which are organised by both products and geography. On first-

B s 2RI DS 857

KEDEmE - time adoption of HKFRS 8, Operating segments and in a manner

REBECHETATMERSESHE - B consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
FRERASEGSETHERABSRRE to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
WMEPRBEMUREETER LK purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
WA TR —2 - REEDRB IR AAE the Group has identified the following two reportable segments.
BOATHRE DB METE M ENLED No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
& o following reportable segments.

- BAERE EENHERBLERE - Hong Kong restaurant:  this segment operates fast food
JE o restaurants in Hong Kong.

- HEERE: EEIHEPRELERE - The PRC restaurant:  this segment operates fast food
JE o restaurants in PRC.

B EERNENEZREREMENR Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of investment

g ETESAREM-

properties and comprised of corporate expenses.
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For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

Performanceis measured based on segment profit before taxation.
[tems not specifically attributable to individual segments, such as
corporate expenses (mainly costs of supporting functions that
are provided by head office), are not allocated to the reporting
segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
profit, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment revenue) and cost
of sales (including food cost, labour cost, rent and rates and
depreciation). The inter-segment transactions were conducted
on normal commercial terms and were priced with reference to
prevailing market prices and in the ordinary course of business.

Segment assets information is not reported or used by the
Group’s most senior executive management.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009 is
set out below.



12 SEEE(E)

12 Segment Reporting (continued)

(@) DHFEEE) (a) Segment results (continued)
EREE TEEE At @
Hong Kong
restaurant The PRC restaurant Other segments Total
Z2-%F _TTNF CB-%F _TTNGF “%-BF "ITHE CB-%F _TTNG
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
r i r I r i r I
$000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000
RENREPHIBA Revenue from external
customers 1407414 1,327,059 147,697 129,624 12,942 15,056 1,568,053 1,471,739
REE A HPHRA Inter-segment revenue - - - - (5705 (62%6) (5,705 (6,236)
BEDBUA Reportable segment
revenue 1407414 1,327,069 147,697 129,624 1,237 8,820 1,562,348 1,465,503
BEPER Reportable segment
profit 92,508 77,595 11,181 7,121 9,644 9,123 113,333 93,839
HEMA Interest income 633 3148 75 54 - - 708 3202
FOEFNMSER Interest expense on
bank loans 852 06 364 55 - - 1,216 121
RENZH Depreciation and
amortisation 48,122 43,898 5,324 4,423 998 1,008 54,444 49,324
(b) HEDEBEFIAVEER (b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit
—2-2F —TTNF
2010 2009
Fr T
$°000 $'000
A Profit
BRAR AT S 80 m Reportable segment profit before taxation 113,333 93,839
LI & FTIER Compensation received on early termination
B (E of lease - 7,000
BTE=ZEBEFEAN Compensation received on granting right of
—HEE#EITIIE access to a third party for construction work
i W ER A A (2 performed in part of a restaurant 3,481 2,135
AR BEFAEEDN Change in fair value of other financial
HihemEE BE asset/liabilities at fair value through
HARBEZE profit or loss (116) (78)
EMEMERS,(EIE) Valuation gains/(losses) on investment properties 3,743 (1,370)
Bl & ERERSR TR Net impairment losses on fixed assets (7,389) (4,142)
RO ARIER Unallocated corporate expenses (2,666) 2,771)
Br L ATAR &0 A Consolidated profit before taxation 110,386 94,613
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12 SEWE (&) 12 Segment Reporting (continued)

(c) HhEMER (c) Geographic information
TRINEBANAEBREINBEFHIK The following table sets out information about the geographical
ARAEBRNETEEREE([fETIE location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and
MEVEE DA ER - BB H (iiy the Group’s fixed assets and goodwill (“specified non-current
EERHEHRREHEROHEEES - 1 assets”). The geographical location of customers is based on
BREEEE  BEFRBDEENFEM the location at which the services were provided or the goods
RERZEENERATHES  mEBR delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-current
e BETEERBEENEAIZRE assets is based on the physical location of the asset in the case
oL ER EEMEE 5 - of fixed assets, and the location of the operating to which they

are allocated in the case of goodwiill.

REIIBEFHBA EERBEE
Revenue from external Specified

customers non-current assets
—E-Z2F5 ZTTHhE —ZT-ZTF ZITTIF
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fr T Fr Tt
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
BB (Fffn) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 1,410,924 1,331,873 312,894 232,620
AR The PRC 151,424 133,630 86,999 75,979

1,562,348 1,465,503 399,893 308,599
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13 BIEEE

13 Fixed Assets

(a) &&= (a) The Group
HELHA HEmx
BEN BRI HitEE gt RENE &
Leasehold
landand  Leasehold Other Investment
buildings improvements assets Sub-total  properties Total
1T 1T I 1T 1T T
$000 $000 $:000 $000 $000 $000
BASEE Cost or valuation:
RZZE\FHA-A At 1 April 2008 93,397 251,822 328,380 673,599 45,374 718973
e Exchange adjustments 138 461 640 1,239 - 1,239
BE Additions - 24,470 36,281 60,751 - 60,751
i Disposals - (32,267) (17,877) (50,144) - (50,144)
34 Transfer 2,828 - - 2,828 (2,869) 1)
EftB%/(EB) Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation 241 - - 241 (1,370) (1,129)
REFENFZAST-R  A3IMach2000 9,004 244486  sarA2d e88SM A1 720649
& Representing:
KA Cost 96,604 244,486 347 424 688,514 - 688,514
HE-ZTENE Valuation - 2009 - - - - 41,135 41,135
96,604 244 486 347 424 688,514 41,135 729,649
ZHFTERRAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
RZZE\FEA-A At 1 April 2008 30,134 191,035 190,852 412,021 - 412,021
BEHAE Exchange adjustments 63 280 269 612 - 612
EESE Charge for the year 2,312 23,053 23,959 49,324 - 49,324
HEREE Written back on disposal - (30,056) (13,951) (44,007) - (44,007)
g% Transfer #1) - - 1) - (41)
FEEE Imparment losses - 680 3,761 4,441 - 4,441
EMFESE Reversal of impairment losses - (297) @) (299) - (299)
REFENFZAST-R  ASIMach2000 2468 1846% 04888 422051 - Ae205
RHFE Net book value:
RZEENE=A=1—H At 31 March 2009 64,136 59,791 142,536 266,463 41,135 307,598
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13 BEEE(E) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(@) XEE(E) (@) The Group (continued)
NEEHE
HELHA  HENE HEBAN
BEN  BRIE  HfbEE N RENE tHEEES ]
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Leasehold use under
landand  Leasehold Other Investment  operating
buildings  improvements assets  Sub-total  properties leases Total

tr tr tr tr tr tr tr
$1000 $1000 $000 $1000 $1000 $000 $1000

RAGEE - Cost or valuation:
RZEENERA-A At 1 April 2009 96,604 244,486 347 424 688,514 4113 - 729,649
RS Exchange adjustments 19 68 87 174 - - 174
%E Addions 19103 49705 83036 151,844 - 8098 159,942
e Disposals - (32,782) [42,514) (75,296) - - (75,296)
ENBRRENERD Transfer to non-current
BE(W1T) assets held for sale (note 17) (7.757) - - (7,757) 2,800 - (10,557)
EfhEE Surplus on revaluation - - - - 3743 - 3743
RF-BEAZT-H AGiMachto 107869 261477 388083 TerA9 4208 809 807605
fik: Representing:
i Cost 107,969 261,477 388,033 757479 - 8,098 765,577
BE-ZZ-%F Valuation - 2010 - - - - 4,078 - 4,078
107,969 261,477 388,033 757,479 4078 8098 807,655

ZHIE  BERAE Accumulated depreciation,

amortisation and impairment:
RZEENERA-A At 1 April 2009 30,468 184,695 204888 422,051 - - 102051
EHA% Exchange adjustments 8 4 4 %4 - - %4
FRITEREH Charge for the year 2,648 23,255 28,329 54,232 - 212 54,444
HEREE Written back on disposal - (32,699) (39,208) (71,905) - - (71,905)
ENBRRENERD Transfer to non-current
BE(f7) assets held for sale (note 17) (3.310) - - (3310) - - (3,310)
HEFE Impaitment losses - 4304 299 7,389 - - 7,389
RF-BEZAST-A AGIMachol0 Sie4 17966 oreet 40881 - 212 408763
BEFE: Net book value:
R-E-Z£=fA=1-H At 31 March 2010 76,155 81,791 190,982 348,928 4078 7,686 398,892
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(a) &EBE(EZ

REEERRASEENDITAT

13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(a) The Group (continued)

The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the Group

is as follows:

—E-EF —ZETNEF
2010 2009
F5 Fi
$000 $'000
THE b o758 - LA  Leasehold land and buildings, at cost
HEEANREE Long-term leasehold in Hong Kong 61,721 69,478
EEENTRHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 19,103 -
ERBEINNFEEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 27,145 27,126
107,969 96,604
KEYE @ It E Investment properties, at valuation
EEENFRHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 6,898 8,345
EEBRIINFREHESE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 35,180 32,790
42,078 41,135
LS ETHEFFEE /) Interests in leasehold land held for
THTAE B - IR own use under operating leases, at cost
ERABNTEHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 8,098 -

REFHAEREDEER T —TF=A
=+ —HEBESRAFEL A ETISE
Ea’“ SR EAFEARMENTGHE

HITE - ﬁﬁ"mﬁfﬁmﬂﬂﬁi/ﬁ”iﬁm
T—ﬁéquﬁﬁlgEi\\jLTT /\IZI =
T AEBSME xe 8 HATHE
%%E’Jﬁﬁmmuﬁﬁ%%é*ﬁﬂﬁmEﬁﬁﬂa
B - AFE ) E (G A #3,743,0007T
(ZZZNF - B1HE5181,370,0007T) B 5
MNREWER -

ﬁf’@?ig BIERM - B R
B & \,;L&%ﬂu’tﬁ%ﬂﬁ’]ﬂﬂa/\&%
ﬂ]lo

(b) All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at

31 March 2010 on an open market value basis calculated by
reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential. The valuations were carried out by an independent firm
of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among their
staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of property being valued.
The revaluation surplus of $3,743,000 (2009: revaluation deficit
of $1,370,000) for the year has been credited to the consolidated
income statement.

Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning plant,
motor vehicles, computer systems and initial purchases of cutlery
and utensils.
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13 EEEE(E)
(d) ERFERN AEEEEEBRTA TH/E

(€

U]

RESERE UHETEEHEETE
ENAKEEHE REGE FREL
& F & E R R E £ % 2 8 {E7,389,0007T
ZETRF ¢ 4,441,00070) © SEA - ARE
EEBEFRNEF B EENESF
TEREMNECEENREHE  BRE
BRI EER(ZESHF - EOREE
E518299,0007T) » #R - AFEHERE T
& E R E R B FEE 47,389,000 ( =&
TH4E : 4,142,0007T) °

AT U @] 8RR Y (A AT 2 AR BR AT 3R R 10%
TETAF 0% FIETHEEEER
FREEAER -

MN-E—FTFE=F=+—0 EAXEH
HoMBARFMERTEERENDE
BR % {8 568,813,000( — B E h 4 ¢
43,302,0007T) °

AREBULLHERRINEYE - B
ENS AR —FE=ZF FTHELLEHESL
TeesElE - AEBBETAIHEREY
KEHETAREBRMNSERENKER
2

13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(d) During the year, the Group’s management identified several

(€)

(f)

branches which continued to under-perform and estimated the
recoverable amounts of the fixed assets of those branches. Based
on these estimates, the carrying amount of the fixed assets was
written down by $7,389,000 (2009: $4,441,000) during the year.
The Group’s management re-estimated the recoverable amounts
of the fixed assets of certain branches which had been impaired
in prior years and no impairment loss was written back (2009:
reversal of impairment losses of $299,000) during the year. As a
result, the net impairment losses on fixed assets of $7,389,000
(2009: $4,142,000) were recognised during the year.

The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the fixed
assets’ value in use, determined using a discount rate of 10%
(2009: 10%).

At 31 March 2010, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of
the Group amounted to $68,813,000 (2009: $43,302,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases initially run for one to three years. None of
the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are receivable as follows:

—s-25 —TEAF

2010 2009

Fr Frx

$’000 $'000

—F A Within 1 year 3,197 6,088
—FEERAFR After 1 year but within 5 years 3,600 2,990
6,797 9,078
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14 H#

14 Goodwill
—2-2F —ETNF
2010 2009
Fr T
$°000 $'000
KA RUA—B & Cost, at 1 April and 31 March
=A=+—H 1,001 1,001

BERENREEHBE THRENH

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

AEBIREERMEFHBORHET Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
AIERIAIR G E M BT T (“CGU”) identified according to the area of operation and business
segment as follows:

—E-ZF —ETNF

2010 2009

T Tt

$°000 $000

Restaurant operation — The PRC 1,001 1,001

ReEREANARELERBIREAE
BEHE - A E S RRREREE AN
FOEBENR SRR © BBLEH
RIE0E 7 B R AL f 31 3K (R »
HEETABBLASEL ETAEEE
BRORAT L RE -

Therecoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimate rates stated below. The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
business in which the CGU operates.

FTEEREENEE/RE Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:
—25F —ETNEF
2010 2009
EA=E Gross margin 14% 13%
BR= Growth rate 5% 3%
riR= Discount rate 10% 10%

EEEBRETENEATSREETREE
T - FTERAM TSGR REITE
RS PTELTER — B MATER AR ITIR X A
= RARIR S E T Bl E R R AT AT
PIREK o

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on
past performance and their expectation for market development.
The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with
the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
CGU.
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15 REATRYIRE 15 Investments in Subsidiaries
PN

The Company
—E-ZF ZZETNF
2010 2009
5 Fi
$°000 $’000
JE ETRRD - KA Unlisted shares, at cost 79,808 77,941
JEULHT B A R FUE Amounts due from subsidiaries 302,061 386,147
381,869 464,088
B RERE Less: Impairment losses (71,657) (109,771)
310,212 354,317

(@) EUWHBARFARERR AR
ERARWREARE

b RZZE-—ZEF=A=+—HOHNEBER
AR IBHIIN P B RERFE128E 5131
E o

16 Rt &FEE
Hit @ MEEREFRSREENRAE
BUERE  ZEBXESREERIIBAZ
AIBETTERBEERNAR - BEANE
ERFWE - W2RBBIRITREF BN
FEEEEE -

EBERBARTREN -

92 AWEREERAF
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16

(@ The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
recoverable on demand and interest-free.

(b) Details of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are set out on
pages 128 to 131 of the financial statements.

Other Financial Asset

Other financial asset represents a principal protected structured
note placed with financial institution which is subject to call option
at the discretion of the financial institution before the maturity
dates. Interest is receivable on a quarterly basis and calculated
at variable interest rates with reference to the London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”).

The structured note is denominated in United States dollars.



17 HAREHFERDRE

17 Non-current Assets Held for Sale

—Z-ZF —ZTThEF

2010 2009

Fx T

$°000 $'000

TE T R EEY) Leasehold land and buildings 4,447 -
(FF5E13) (note 13)

EMZE(H7E13) Investment properties (note 13) 2,800 -

7,247 -

ErSEEEBATHESE THEL MR
BEMMICEYER  ZEMECERE
HERERBEERY - DEZRFWMER
TR -_Z—ZF = Al TR -F
—EFNA -+ -—HEFEF=FFF—EHE
EAY - EHEBERIN_Z—ZF A
=t+HBEZRK °

Certain leasehold land and buildings and investment properties
are presented as non-current assets held for sale following
the decision of the Group’s management to dispose of these
properties. Efforts to dispose of these assets commenced in
March 2010 and a sale and purchase agreement was entered
into with a third party on 22 April 2010. The sale and purchase
was completed on 30 June 2010.

" 18 Inventories
REEEEBRAMTNEEERE (a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet comprise:
rEH
The Group
—E-=F ZZETNF
2010 2009
o T
$°000 $'000
R MG Food and beverages 17,629 23,892
JEFEm - BEMER Consumables, packing materials and
Efb e other sundry items 4,539 5,340
22,168 29,232
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18 HFH (&) 18 Inventories (continued)
(b) BRAIHNTFEEEIWNOT ¢ (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:

—E-2F —TThF
2010 2009
Fr T
$°000 $'000
BEEFENEESRE Carrying amount of inventories sold 437,027 425,079
TFEMR Write down of inventories 337 196
437,364 425,275
19 FEUTARFRF0 L fth FE U 7R 19 Trade and Other Receivables
TEE b
The Group The Company
—E-2F Z—TTHhE —T-TF ZZTTHHF
2010 2009 2010 2009
T F7 5 F7
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
JEURBR SR E M EULFR  Trade and other debtors 9,059 4,681 - -
EfEeES Rental deposits paid 10,269 11,137 - -
e MBI Deposits and prepayments 19,820 20,541 207 207
FEU B B A RIRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 61,912 35,500
39,148 36,359 62,119 35,707
(a) BRERD T (a) Ageing analysis
PEEE B & FE IR SRR HE i FE UK B I FE Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors (net of
WERF(E B REEME) - BB EHEH allowance for doubtful debts), based on the invoice date, with
FTERERRSTIT ¢ the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:
AEHE
The Group
—E-ZF —ZZETNF
2010 2009
S T
$°000 $'000
—Z2=+1H 1 to 30 days 4,055 1,083
=+—EA+A 31 to 90 days 554 31
Nt+—=—daN\+H 91 to 180 days 93 -
—BN\+—Z2=ZFH/+HHB 181 to 365 days 3 -
4,705 1,114
AEBHEBRETHNHERZITEURS The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
HH AEENMATEREENITER The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 90 days to certain
NF=+HENLTHHEES - customers to which the Group provides catering services.
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19 EUGIRFFE B (Z)
(b) FEEUERFUBE

& W2 B TR B BB B 1R 8 PR AR R BR 2R AC
%o BEAKRER KL EEEEMN AN
BIEE - BRERERRESEZTHER
FR(AHEIK) BE-Z-ZFR-F
FAF=ZA=+—"HILEFE AKEL
EIXSHRERURNERERE -

IERER FEURBRR
FEME B S 4R A HuAR 5 Rk (B O B LA BR FR AR %
DTN

19 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against the trade debtor directly (see note 1(k)). During
the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group did not
record any material impairment losses in respect of its trade
debtors.

Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

TEH
The Group
—E-EF —EENF
2010 2009
Fix T
$’°000 $’000
SHEMSRE  Neitherpastduenorimpaied 8912 1,077
BHID R —E A Less than 1 month past due 343 36
A —F=={EA 1 to 3 months past due 399 1
mHA=FNEA 3 to 6 months past due 48 -
wEINE+ @A 6 to 12 months past due 3 -
e ™ 37
4,705 1,114

FEB SR E R YRR R T AR B e
RicErmEFABEER

EEHVESERE R U SRR T R R E A
SEERMEBERN B ULEF - &
BERR REAEER BRNEEEER
WEEEE - A REERIDER SR 28U
B - FrASBRL AT RRBEER - AKH
W LIS LR M A EIFm -

ARBIFAE A E A R FIRS EER
BEEEBARKE KRS -

(d)

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

All amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company are
unsecured, recoverable on demand and interest-free.

95



AR R M

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRBAHBAI  LUBHESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 SRITERMAS 20 Bank Deposits and Cash
rEH A H]
The Group The Company
—E-FF ZTThEFE —E-ZF ZITTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fr T Frx T
$’000 $’000 $°000 $’000
IRITIER Deposits with banks 94,099 110,946 - -
RITFRAMRE Cash at bank and in hand 113,393 70,152 205 158
HEMERFRAIRE Cash and cash equivalents in the
MR EEY cash flow statement 207,492 181,098 205 158
BEEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 2,550 - - -
BEEAGBRT Bank deposits and cash in
HRITIFEHRAE L the balance sheet 210,042 181,098 205 158
RZZE—ZTF=A=+—8 BEHFR?T Bank deposits of $2,550,000 (2009: $Nil) are pledged to a bank
73 7%2,550,000(ZEZENEF : TT) to secure a loan of $1,447,000 as at 31 March 2010 (2009:
LAYE B —51,447,0000( Z 2T NF - T $Nil) borrowed by an independent third party food processing
T0) T BN B = A R R AR E AR contractor.
ITEFHER -
REEAEBBRAMTNRITERNREE Included in bank deposits and cash in the consolidated balance
BTIAEBEEERB BB AINEE R sheet are the following amounts denominated in a currency other
BRAIAEEE than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:
rEE
The Group
—E-ZF —ZETNF
2010 2009
Tt Tt
$’000 $’000
E United States dollars Z%7tUSD7,786  3£TUSDS8,098

0 KWEREERAF
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21 FEFIRSRIERERSR 21 Trade and Other Payables

REE ¥ NN
The Group The Company
—E-TH —ZRhF 2B ZTTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
T Tt SEm Tt
$°000 $'000 $’000 $000
Bl eEe Rental deposits received 488 1,232 - -
FERBRFIFERT & A Creditors and accrued expenses 222,882 189,143 1,339 1,320
RN VNG R Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 27,875 27,889
R ER A GTE Financial liabilities measured at
RE: ) amortised cost 223,370 190,875 29,214 29,209
PTEemITA Derivative financial instruments
- (WEE28@y) (note 28(@)(i) e - - -
223,486 190,375 29,214 29,209
FIr 78 FEAST BR 51 M E R A 3R (B 1B FE AT R B All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due to
FHRIB)EHAR—FREEXIBRAK related parties) are expected to be settled or recognised as
A AR —FREE - income or are repayable within one year.
REFBMEMBRRMEMENRBIERE Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
FMERR - BEiEEZEAHAENRE ST on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of the
™ balance sheet date:
REE
The Group
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
ST FT
$’000 $000
—&=+H 1 to 30 days 70,850 57,627
—+t—=h+H 31 to 90 days 1,577 1,741
h+—=—8aNA+8 91 to 180 days 89 1,089
—BN\+T—ZEZ=ZF/THH 181 to 365 days 86 499
—F U Over one year 1,054 472
73,656 61,428
KRB FTE BB AR ZRIES K - All amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are unsecured,
BB - WEEEEBMEERE - interest-free and repayable on demand.
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22 SITHEHR 22 Bank Loans
R-ZE—TF=ZF=+—8  EITEXD At 31 March 2010, the bank loans were repayable as follows:
EFERNT
REME
The Group
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
Frx FT
$°000 $°000
A Withintyear 3580 380
—FRERFNR After 1 year but within 2 years 10,658 -
MEZRERATFA After 2 years but within 5 years 19,952 5,670
hF& After 5 years 11,066 -
L 41676 5,670
IRITE AR Total bank loans 45,265 6,020

RZZ-ZF=A=+—H0  RITEXD

At 31 March 2010, the bank loans were secured as follows:

BRI
AEE
The Group
= T ) Ji
2010 2009
Fr Tt
$°000 $’000
RITER Bank loans
—HEH — secured 30,059 350
— I - unsecured 15,206 5,670
45,265 6,020

NZZE—FBE=A=+—01  LlFHHR
TERMBITE I AREBH RO WE
TERIEIR (2B 5E13() °

AEEWMHORTERAFTAKEETHE
MEERBRILENZNR  THIEE -
BEROE DR ES BB L ERE
PR o HAKEERRY CBHAEORE
RARERER - AEEEETHERED
ETHERY -

08 AWEREERAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

At 31 March 2010, certain of the above bank loans were secured
by charges on properties of the Group (note 13(g)).

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group’s balance sheet
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand.
The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants.



22

23

24

|ITER(EZ)
AEBEERBECREBROFBEHAME
28(@)i)c R=ZZE—FTF=HA=+—H #f
EERBHECHAEERENRO(ZZEE
NE | o

& BB FiRF
REBZREBCRHNERTE S BRG]
MRE - SREFB(REBREIDNELE
ReREE  RBHMEATREE([8IE
T8 o mEEF 82— EREHKE
REt8l - BB FEAEE - RIBEBTA
8 BEMEEZARRESHBA
B 5% BIEL MR - BEAERA
B LR %320,0007T » HRE BIRS % A 521
TP -

AEBEEBAIMEERANESREE
BB BAM S BE E #E M 5 E HBURIK
AHEILREZ -

DiEGEHENHLURGSERNHES
ARBAR—_ZFZ_FNLATNBEAT —
TRIERAEET 8] - Bt AR EFERE
RIEBFEAARRREMBRARNES
(BREGEMTEE B IFRITES) AT
B B Emmm - RIEA -~ K - #&F
A~ RYRRBGHEER - BT - &
BRBAMEEBHRIBRE - URE
ARmEpf - AEBNEER T =ES
M=  ()IRDEE - ()RERERT
BHEE MR HME B RERARORN
Y B RPN ExBRERTE R
Al {8 & 5 B AR AT E A IR E R TR
B FERHE - REZEBETLNBRE
MRBAE AR ETE - PEARRERT 21 1S
FRBETTEA I AR BNRERR - 5
BABEEBABRERBIBRARAE

22

23

24

Bank Loans (continued)

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in 28(a)(ii). As at 31 March 2010, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2009:
None).

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

Equity-settled Share-based Transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18
September 2002 under which the Directors are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Director) or any
employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or any consultant,
agent, representative, advisor, supplier of goods or services,
customer, contractor, business ally and joint venture partner to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company at a
price which shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the share; (i) the closing price of the share as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; and (jii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer. Save as
determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the relevant
options, there is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before an option can be exercised under the share option
scheme. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company.
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24 DESEHPHLIRNSERNER(Z) 24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(@ UTRESFEETFERENIERAMME (a2 The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during

B -FMEBRELEBEERTRGE the year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by
=g physical delivery of shares:
B
BRERE TR BHHIR
Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
RTERNBRE -
Options granted to Directors:
——ZETHhFMEANB 1,400,000 AR=ZE—ZTFMA—HZE 7.0
—E-RF=ZA=+—H
RS AHATTE
—on 8 April 2009 1,400,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years

during the period from
1 April 2010 to
31 March 2016

—ZZE—ZTF=-A—H 400,000 ARZZE——F—HA—HZE 6.8F
—E-R"F+=ZA=+—H
RS THATTE

—on 1 March 2010 400,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.8 years

during the period from
1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016

T B BEARIE
Options granted to employees:
—ZZEZENFAHA—H 100,000 ARZEZENFAA=Z+=AZF 514
—ETNFAAZTH
BT
—on 1 September 2004 100,000 Exercisable during 5.1 years
the period from
23 September 2008 to
22 September 2009
—ZZEZNFMARH 800,000 AR=ZE—ZFMARAZE 6.0
—ZE—tFHAMA
RS THATTEE
—on 6 April 2009 800,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.0 years

during the period from
5 April 2010 to
4 April 2017
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24 LRSHEFHLURIGSERHES(E)
(@ ATRESFERTERENFRKNE

24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during

HoFEBREEEBREERINRME the year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by
g (&) physical delivery of shares: (continued)
i IR R
BREHE 1T EfRR SR ER
Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
—ZZEZNFMWMANR 3,600,000 ARZZE—ZFMA—RZE 7.0F
—E-XF=ZA=+—H
BAff > A ERTT I
—on 8 April 2009 3,600,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years
during the period from
1 April 2010 to
31 March 2016
——ZEFTNFHAMA 100,000 ARZZE—ZFMA—RZE 6.99F
—E-XF=ZA=+—H
BAfS > A ERTT I
—on 4 May 2009 100,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.9 years
during the period from
1 April 2010 to
31 March 2016
——ZFFENFEAT+H 200,000 ARZZE—ZEF+HA—RHZE 6.7F
—E-RFRA=TH
BAff > A ERTT I
—on 10 July 2009 200,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.7 years

during the period from
1 July 2010 to
30 June 2016
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24 LIESRAENLRGCSERNER(Z) 24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(b) EERRFEMVEIE FIINFEFIIITEENT ¢ (b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

—E-BF —EFNF
2010 2009
InFEF 5 BB AR s AR
TEE =] fTEE #H
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of exercise of
price options price options
TR T
’000 000
FHRITEE Outstanding at the beginning
of the year $2.337T 100 $8.967T 4,781
FRERT Granted during the year $6.427T 6,500 - -
FARBITE Exercised during the year $2.337T (100) $2.337C (200)
FRBERK Lapsed during the year $6.26 7T (140) $6.457T (721)
FRE T Cancelled during the year $6.26 7T (640) $9.977C (3,760)
FRRITHE Outstanding at the end
of the year $6.44 T 5,720 $2.337C 100
FRATTHE Exercisable at the end
of the year - - $2.337C 100
REERNBITEERENTTE B89 NEFE The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
HIRE £6.00m(ZFEZNEF : 6.957T) © shares options exercised during the year was $6.00 (2009:
$6.95).
RZE—ZTF ==+ BRITEHERE The options outstanding at 31 March 2010 had exercise price
K1T1E(E £6.443L( Z T N F : 2.325 of $6.443 (2009: $2.325) and a weighted average remaining
JC) ¢ M hnAE T g S ) ERRR R5.924F contractual life of 5.92 years (2009: 0.48 years).

(ZZZT NG 048%F)
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24 URSRADLIKRGCSERNHZS(F)
(c) BRENRABEMBRR

BRRTERERSZRENAABER
SEMBETRRENRAEBENE - IR
TEERENGEA A BERKE =AM
RAETE - WKBRENSBRBAE
ZERHBAEE - ZIAAHEELCE
RIBEHRBITERNTE

24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a trinomial lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the trinomial lattice model.

—EENF ZEENF ZBETENF ZTTNF T FF
mA<H mANR AAMAE +A+H =H—H
BT KT KT KT KT
B B A B RE A RE A
Options Options Options Options Options
granted at granted at granted at granted at granted at
BREN D2 BENRR 6 April 8 April 4 May 10July 1 March
Fair value of share options and assumptions 2009 2009 2009 2009 2010
RETEHMAREE  Fairvalue at $0.647t  $0.697t  $0.627t  $0.577 $0.877T
measurement date
Petn B1& Share price $6.30t  $6.260t $6.297t  $6.917t  $8.087T
1B Exercise price $6.307T $6.267C $6.297T $7.697C $8.087T
TEHRE B Expected volatility 25.06% - 26.05% - 25.30% - 27.10% - 25.86% -
29.15% 34.01% 28.01% 29.91% 27.07%
HE i EAR (BRI A Option life (expressed as
= I8 Bh AR AU By weighted average life
Fir R hntge used in the modelling
FIIEAMR ) under trinomial lattice 3.00 3.51 2.91 2.98 2.84
model) yearstF years®F years®F years®F years®F
TEHARR B X Expected dividend yield 6.19% 6.23% 6.20% 5.64% 5.69%
R fa A X Risk-free interest rate
(ASMNEE S IR (based on Exchange 0.44% -  059%- 021%- 0.08%-  0.21% -
RER) Fund Notes) 1.70% 1.80% 1.64% 1.79% 1.62%

TEHRN B R R ARIBIE LN B R (ARB RN
IEFOFIGHRAERAE) - X AR
SRA] AFESNE R AR IOLE R E
AR CELRARRE - BHREX
RRBEELRESFH - THEARKRNHE
B REBREREMMETAANEE-

BREERE - ERBIEEFRT - SHEMF
BRUBREERTEN AL BER L&
FASTRMGIT - BEN R T A
IS IRIFIR B

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividend yield is based on historical dividends. Change in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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25 HEARBRERMTHMRERN 25 Income Tax in the Balance Sheet
(a) HEEEEBRIAWABRFIES : (@) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet
represents:
REM
The Group
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
5 Fi
$’000 $’000
REEERE Provision for Hong Kong
FISTERE Profits Tax for the year 12,037 13,423
BT E A Provisional Profits Tax paid (9,722 (15,641)
2,315 (2,218)
AT FERIEH Balance of Profits Tax provision
LR relating to prior years 358 @)
2,673 (2,225)
P EITEIE PRC taxation 538 538
TEHBR —FR Amount of taxation expected to be
BN TRIE settled within one year 3,211 (1,687)
& - Representing:
A [El A BARR IR Current tax recoverable (8) (2,239)
FEAT AN HRRR IR Current tax payable 3,219 552
3,211 (1,687)
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25 BERREMTHMRFERE)

(b) ERAELEHREEENERS !

EEGAEERBRERNELRE(E
E)/ BENEXRBOMAFZESH T

25 Income Tax in the Balance Sheet (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the

year are as follows:

rEH
The Group
REYE EBEETE
B HTERBEE #zE
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation in excess of
of investment related
properties depreciation Total
Tt Tz Tz
$'000 $'000 $'000
RE NS IERREENIE Deferred tax arising from:
RZZEZNFMA—H At 1 April 2008 153 901 1,054
TiralERBYIE Charged to the consolidated
income statement - 1,873 1,873
RZTZENF=A=+—H At 31 March 2009 153 2,774 2,927
RZZEZENFMA—H At 1 April 2009 153 2,774 2,927
Tira RSy Charged to the consolidated
income statement 223 4,952 5,175
NZE—FTF=HA=+—H At 31 March 2010 376 7,726 8,102
AEE
The Group
—F-FF ZTTNF
2010 2009
T Fi
$’000 $000
TiRa EEBBERERY Net deferred tax assets recognised
EEHIEEESE on the consolidated balance sheet (37) (35)
TiREa EEBBERERY Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
R I B EFRE on the consolidated balance shest 8,139 2,962

8,102 2,927
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25 REARKMTHMRERE)
(c) RERMELEHRIAEE :

25 Income Tax in the Balance Sheet (continued)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

rEE

The Group
—E-ZfF —ZETNF
2010 2009
T Tt
$’000 $’000
AIMRERER Deductible temporary differences 2,843 2,464
ZECRFERAMMIEEE Accumulated unused tax losses 40,563 40,476
43,406 42,940

AEB AR L HIBEEELE THB L
ﬁﬁ@ﬂ?ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁmﬁkﬁlﬁ
ﬁﬁ ! EZ]K%#E:EEEWEE’\
F=A=+—8" ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂﬁ%jﬁﬂéﬁﬁ
JERE 88 N A A B 1S Al R B e B B
BEVRREBORN - RIBRITHE B
IR IR TR E MR -

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
the above tax losses and deductible temporary differences of
certain subsidiaries as management of the Group considers that
it is not probable as at 31 March 2010 that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire
under current tax legislation.

26 #f 26 Provisions
KEE
The Group

—E-ZfF —ZETNF
2010 2009
T Tt
$°000 $’000
RERG S EE Provision for long service payments 12,920 12,320

HEBFMIEE Provision for reinstatement costs for
PR rented premises 15,000 14,534
27,920 26,854

B BEENRBAE] Less: Amount included under

TEAR) I8 “current liabilities” (4,335) (5,489)
23,585 21,365
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26 #f@ (&)

(@)

26 Provisions (continued)

RERBESEE (a) Provision for long service payments
rEE
The Group
—E-2F —TTNF
2010 2009
Fr T
$’000 $000
WIMA—H At 1 April 12,320 11,530
BRI ERINER Additional provisions made 1,285 1,820
B AR ER Provision utilised (685) (1,030)
W=A=+—H At 31 March 12,920 12,320

REEB(ERBGEN)  AEEANE T8
NTEREERG & ERFORESBER
B[RS S — 508 - BN BREFZ
FREMZRFCHFEME  WEHE
REARERAEIZE MR E ANKE M
HEHED - AEEYES BAIEIEM
BREEE -

HES RIS ERANEM

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary and
years of service, and is reduced by entitlement accrued under the
Group’s retirement schemes that are attributable to contributions
made by the Group. The Group does not set aside any assets to
fund the above.

(b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises

rEH
The Group

—E-FF —ETNF

2010 2009

Fi FT

$°000 $’000

M A—H At 1 April 14,534 13,657
EAHERIREINER Additional provisions made 1,571 1,877
EE R ERH Provision utilised (1,105) (1,000)
R=ZA=+—H At 31 March 15,000 14,534

RIBEZETFIZOBEERZNGRR  KE
A AR AR B 15 % JE m S SRR AL AE 1B T
EI5PT AR AR BALE - B
AEECHRBHSEEMEERNZRE
At T 24

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with landlords,
the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental premises at
the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant rental agreements.
Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of the expected
reinstatement costs to be incurred.
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27 BEXMGE 27 Capital and Reserves

(a) ~&£H (a) The Group
REEGFEER T EARER D &) H ¥ 8 The recongiliation between the opening and closing balances of
BB AS RV IR - SIS EB490BE RS 1 each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in
mFEEK o the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 49.

(b) &AFH (b) The Company

BAx  BRGEE HARH EXRE  REE ot
Share Share Contributed Capital  Retained

capital  premium surplus reserve profits Total
i i T T i T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZZT/\ENA—-A At 1 April 2008 127,106 - 56,610 1,463 223,762 408,941
LFERENRS Dividends approved
in respect of the
previous year 10(0) - - - - (51,670)  (51,670)
ERAMN Profit for the year - - - - 28194 28194
REBRETEETRY Shares issued under
share option scheme 27()() 200 265 - - - 465
BTER Issue expenses - ® - - - 8
INEEEERRN A Equity-settled share-based
A0S transactions - 187 - 1,205 496 1,888
EEASRH Repurchase of
own shares
-BREE - par value paid 27(c)() (1,719) - - - - (1,719)
—EffRERRHME — premium and
transaction
costs paid 27(c)i) - 219 (12,350 - - (12,569)
FEEEERRE Dividends declared in
respect of the
current year 10(a) - - - - (12,549 (12,549)
RZEENEF=A=1—H At 31 March 2009 125,587 225 44,260 2,668 188,233 360,973
RZZZNEMA—-H At 1 April 2009 125,587 205 44,260 2668 188,233 360,973
TEEIERRE Dividends approved
in respect of the
previous year 10(b) - - - - (35,192) (35,192)
FEEN Profit for the year - - - - 38069 38069
RiEBERET IR TR Shares issued under
share option scheme 27(c)(i) 100 133 - - - 233
HTER Issue expenses - (4) - - - 4)
WERESN RN A Equity-settled share-based
HRNZ S transactions - 96 - 1,771 - 1,867
AEFEERNERE Dividends declared in
respect of the
current year 10(a) - - - - (22,624 (22,624)
RZZ-ZF=A=+-H  At31March2010 125,687 450 44,260 4439 168486 343,322
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27 RATGE ()

27 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(c) BA& (c) Share capital
—E-FF —ZTNF
2010 2009
BRHEE B EahEEE! L
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
TR T Fax T
’000 $’000 ’000 $°000
SEERA Authorised:
SEREEITERR Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
EZEFTRACRAE Issued and fully paid:
RWA—H At 1 April 125,587 125,587 127,106 127,106
RAREENER 2135178 Shares issued under share
Bt (BF5EG) option scheme (note (i) 100 100 200 200
(] B AR 1 (BR3E(i)) Shares repurchased (note (ii)) - - (1,719) (1,719)
R=A=+—8 At 31 March 125,687 125,687 125,587 125,587
MIaE - Notes:

M

RBRE R BB T

RNEEANBERERFBFARBERR B LB
4 #£100,0000% (ZZ Z )14 : 200,0008% )
{8 3 £233,0007T( — = S 4F : 465,000
JC ) E #F100,0000t( — T T S F
200,0007t ) 2 ABRAER - Mgk T AY133,000
TL(ZZEZTAE : 265,0005T) BIFE AN 5
{BER ° 96,0007C(ZZFZ N4F : 187,0007T)
B ARERFT 551 () (i) BT 21 B9 B SR B A AR R e 8
ARG RERE -

U

Share issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for 100,000
(2009: 200,000) ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration
of $233,000 (2009: $465,000), of which $100,000 (2009: $200,000)
was credited to share capital and the balance of $133,000 (2009:
$265,000) was credited to the share premium account. $96,000
(2009: $187,000) has been transferred from the capital reserve to
the share premium account in accordance with policy set out in note

1(p) ).
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27 BEMGEMmWE) 27 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(c) BA(4&) (c) Share capital (continued)
PR« (4%) Notes: (continued)
(i) BAXHRGD (i) Purchase of own shares
HE-_ZTAFE=ZA=1t—HUIEFE &K During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Company repurchased
NAEEBZAERASRMDNT ¢ its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

E1 85 1% £ BRAN BRI

B8R =] BEE RIEE Fift#aE
Number of Highest price Lowest price
shares paid per paid per Aggregate
Date of repurchase repurchased share share price paid
JT JT T
$ $ $'000
—EENFRA=-+=H 22 May 2008 82,500 8.78 8.76 724
—TENFRAZFRA 26 May 2008 200,000 8.72 8.72 1,744
—EZ)N\FRA=-T++H 27 May 2008 299,500 8.72 8.72 2,612
—EENFRA=-FTNH 28 May 2008 249,500 8.72 8.72 2,176
—ZT)N\FHA=1H 30 May 2008 350,000 8.72 8.70 3,051
—ZZET N\FNAANR 8 September 2008 300,000 7.60 7.60 2,280
—EENFNAANA 9 September 2008 57,500 7.50 7.45 430
—TEN\FNAA+—H 11 September 2008 50,000 7.25 7.25 363
—ZEZ)N\FALA+LEH 17 September 2008 60,000 6.70 6.70 402
—ZEENFAATNR 18 September 2008 70,000 6.25 6.25 437
1,719,000 14,219
BREARMNEEEEMBEEEESE - Bt AR The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly the issued
AMBEBETRAD HEREZERERD share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
WEE - REERGOAZNHEENRZS of these shares. The premium and transaction costs paid on the
MABEAR R RAEENREETHRE - repurchase of the shares were charged to the Company’s and the

Group’s reserves.

HE-Z-—ZFE=-A=+—HIEFE &K The Company did not purchase any of its own shares during the
ANANEBETMAZ RS year ended 31 March 2010.
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27 BFMGEMm(Z) 27 Capital and Reserves (continued)

() BA&(#E) (c) Share capital (continued)
BiisE - (48) Notes: (continued)
(i)  REEE B E KRB m A S RITE RS IRAE 1K (iiy Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the balance
= sheet date
BTHH TEHE TfEE —E-ZF ZEThE
Exercise
Date granted Exercise period price 2010 2009
JT £ (| #E
$ Number Number
ZTTMFNA—A 2T\ FNR-+=HE=_EENFNA=-+=H
1 September 2004 23 September 2008 to 22 September 2009 2.325 - 100,000
“TTNFIHARA “E-ZFNMARRE_T—+FNANA
6 April 2009 5 April 2010 to 4 April 2017 6.30 800,000 -
—ETAFIHANA —Z-ZTFNA—BE-_E—RF=-A=1+—H
8 April 2009 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2016 6.26 4,220,000 -
“TTNFRANA —E-ZFENA-HE-_T—F=-A=+—H
4 May 2009 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2016 6.29 100,000 -
—ETNFLATH —E-ZFtLA-HEZZE—FRA=1H
10 July 2009 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2016 7.69 200,000 -
—T-TE=A—H —T——f-f-HAEZT—R"F+t-A=t+—H
1 March 2010 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2016 8.08 400,000 -
5,720,000 100,000
BHERERTERSEATRBIRAAR Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share
TRRAETN - BRELERENE—2 in the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note
BRSNS RmEM 24 © 24 to the financial statements.
(d) FEEBENMEENAZR (d) Nature and purpose of reserves
) BR17%E () Share premium
1D & BEEMER X AR AINA A The application of the share premium account is governed
ERRMBIE 150K BISTIEME RiE— by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
AN—FRRPERIFTIRE » the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
(i) FE7 B (i)  Exchange reserve
b 5 B SR E A B T 60 B TS The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
KITELERMAINEERE - RQFIR differences arising from the translation of the financial
B 1OME NS 5T BUR R IR IE X statements of PRC operations. The reserve is dealt with

1 o in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

1(1).



(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

AR
BRE-NNANEN—BER AEE
CIREY A s RN/NCIE: D LUo) = PN
Al e ARAIFABAMBARINGSE
EFEBEARRDHTROEERN
BECIARRBNHARS - K&
BH ARSI AER A R H AR
B N e ) 4 (B 4R R AR B A A AR IR
SESABITRMEOEEMNEER -

RRABNFABHREBRE—NN—
HRBEERIFHRE - REARE—
NN REDER)  ARBHHA
BERFTAADIK ©

AW ERHERT - ARR]BEA
BABRERIKERSIIEL S
K

(@) PAFRIR RS A S 2 H)
HBE 3k

b)) EEEMREREERMNDNE
BEEREDETRARRN G E
BREVAEA -

N

B R FEAR IR R 1 (o)) P 8 A BX
D RERH O BER - R
TALAEBBRENERSEGR
TEHENLAEE-

0 TS (A

-+ b S8 ) B ik 4 A F 4
Yl ET INTS LE ST s 1
FTEE M8 o

e Al 77 R FEJE
R-E—ZTF=ZF=+—H" 1t
DEFARAESRENFEERSE
A212,746,000( — & T N F:
232,493,000t ) - EENHEH A &
EE R R B B = R2s.0Ml( =
ZhF: KRR B &80
& #£35,192,0000t( — T T N F -
35,164,0007T) ° BELRBNREER
KERBEE -
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(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former holding
company of the Group became a subsidiary of the Company.
The excess of the consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company over the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company has been credited to the
Company’s contributed surplus. The Group’s contributed
surplus represents the excess of the aggregate of the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of
the former holding company over the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company under the reorganisation.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus of the
Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 1(p)(ii).

Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
change arising on the revaluation of property held for own
use upon transfer to investment property.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $212,746,000 (2009: $232,493,000). After
the balance sheet date the Directors proposed a final
dividend of 28.0 cents (2009: final dividend of 28.0 cents)
per share amounting to $35,192,000 (2009: $35,164,000).
These dividends have not been recognised as a liability at
the balance sheet date.
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HEHEN ()

EREE
AEEEBARNEE B 0 RIS
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& i BRRIREEE -

R-B-FE=F=+—01 KAEE@EE
RiEA5,265,0007T ( ZZFZF N4 1 6,020,000
JL) o WA RZZE—TF=ZA=+—H "
B E R (BN AN & B 42 15 70 B2 48 B AN T R4
HEELR) B11.0% (ZZZAE : 1.6%) °
R-E—ZTE=ZF=+—H KEEH
EREUEE THERABRESEHREH
209,833,0007T( ZZEZF S5 : 183,439,000
JT) °
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Capital and Reserves (continued)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

As 31 March 2010, the Group has total borrowings amounting to
$45,265,000 (2009: $6,020,000). The gearing ratio, representing
the ratio of total borrowings to the total share capital and reserves
of the Group was 11.0% at 31 March 2010 (2009: 1.6%). The
Group had structured note, time deposits and cash balances
as at 31 March 2010 amounting to $209,833,000 (2009:
$183,439,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Financial Instruments

Financial risk management and fair value

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

() Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, bank deposits and cash at bank.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that catering services are provided
to customers with an appropriate credit history. Sales to retail
customers are made in cash, Octopus or via major credit
cards. At the balance sheet date, there were no significant
concentrations of credit risk.

The Group’s structured note, time deposits and cash
balances are normally placed with financial institutions of
high credit quality.
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28 &M TR(E)
(a) MBEMEERAAEBEGE)

()

(i)

R (&)
AEEMAZNEERR ERA/BE
BEXRTEHESREENERESE -
B B TESORT 8 AN X B 34 &8 20 Y /B & A
MVERTT I8 RS B R B I R R IASN -
AREE AW BB AR EBERBUER
SEEAZEERR - BTEERR
BB E =77 R B IR AR B AT
& AR B SR A RTT AR AR 1T
TR (2RME20) ©

REE 2 A
AEENEREEMERRDESH

S URREGABRRENRT -
BURRERARNR SRR - B
TESREERER AN ARERE
B UBRESNSRNNRDE S
=55 o

NRFFVIAEE RARRIITE R
TEERBENEERNRBROES
HIFE - R E2RBBERNEARTR
REeEREBEANEMNES - 1EF
B BERNEEANERMNRFENH
ENARAREENARBAKE LN
B HAif 51) % -

RIREEREFRD T
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28 Financial Instruments (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.
Except for the financial guarantee given by the Company in
respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
as disclosed in note 30, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit
risk except for the pledge of bank deposits to a bank to
secure a loan borrowed by an independent third party food
processing contractor (see note 20).

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirement and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative and derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company
can be required to pay:



28 &I R(#Z) 28 Financial Instruments (continued)

() BEEREERAAEBEBEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) REELERE) (i) Liquidity risk (continued)
FEE
The Group
—B-BE
2010
HESES
FRAE —EpE MEAL
RELE MERH —£R BRMER BREER EFNE
More than  More than
Total 1 year 2 years
contractual but less but less More
Carrying undiscounted Within than than than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5years 5 years
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
BIER Bank loans 45,265 49,719 4,863 11,645 21,502 11,709
Bk Rental deposits received 1,614 1,614 488 777 349 -
ERERFAMETER  Creditors and
accrued expenses 222,882 222,882 222,882 - - -
TESRIA Derivative financial
instruments 116 1,861 249 543 1,004 65
269,877 276,076 228,482 12,965 22,855 11,774
TEHE
The Group
ZTENE
2009
HESES
FTRAE —FE WMENME
FHRE it —Fx  EmFAN  BLFR  LFNUE
Morethan ~ More than
Total 1 year 2 years
contractual but less but less More
Carrying  undiscounted Within than than than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T T T
$:000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
RITER Bank loans 6,020 6,579 577 226 5,776 -
Blfdie Rental deposits received 1,907 1,907 1,232 260 415 -
ERENAEER Creditors and
accrued expenses 189,143 189,143 189,143 - - -

197,070 197,629 190,962 486 6,191 -
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28 &M TR(E)
(a) MBEMEERAAEBEGE)

28 Financial Instruments (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(i) REEDEEE (i) Liquidity risk (continued)
ARATE]
The Company
—E-EfF
2010
HESES
WHERE
RE<®H REHBTE —FR
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
Tt Tt Tt
$’000 $’000 $’000
FE BR FRAN Creditors and accrued
FEFtE R expenses 1,339 1,339 1,339
FEASTHY B A B 5E Amounts due to subsidiaries 27,875 27,875 27,875
29,214 29,214 29,214
ViN/NE]!
The Company
—ETNF
2009
HESEN
WRES
BRASE MEAERE —FN
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
T T Tt
$’000 $'000 $’000
FEA BRFRAN Creditors and accrued
FERTE R expenses 1,320 1,320 1,320
AL PNGIE e Amounts due to subsidiaries 27,889 27,889 27,889
29,209 29,209 29,209
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(i) T2 2

A E BN FIR AR T BR A B E
BRBITES - ERTERER
SSFIR 8 -

MIBTTER CEEEBRERARR
%‘J%ﬁﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁﬂj?%ml%ﬁq ViN
EETEFRAFEBEHAEHOUERF
%@Boﬂ—f TEFEZR=1+—
CARNEBETERNERR XA
2%6_77h¢ 6.3%) °

HE-_Z—ZF=-A=1+—HLHF
B AEEER VBB ENFIEX
ﬁ%ém'uﬁﬁﬁé$%@ﬁ%m
ERT - ZEBCEE W EE M ZEFIE
EpEE R-_E—TFE=A=+—
A AEBENAEEBEONEES
474 %8 /524,133,000 ( ZET N 4F ¢
Z0) AEETEE TRITEROF
E o PUREFIR B ERFE -

B LIS BRI A XS A R SRS R B B
HAAEE (2 H K 22) MBI H A
— 2 HETE B ENF2.63%
B274% M _E—ZTF=—A=+—
B REBEMIZIBBHENAARE
BFBA116,000(ZEZENF : &
L) BESECHERATAESRT
B - WE s Al FE BR Z0M & th & 1+
K (FIaE21) ©

mf;—ﬁi_ﬂ_+ B (hETE

BE R R G0, 8 D 50E H B (R R
%ﬁﬁMTmlﬁﬁhT“ » REE
HI R 1855 B & 1200, 8 4 986,000
T(ZZETNE B HEAN4I15,000
JT) °

A EBRRE NIRRT - R R
EHEEHDKEL Iﬂfﬁﬂéﬁ
AEAKEMBANERTE B85
$%lﬁm§5%#@ﬁﬁﬁﬂ$@

AN BT R RN & IR A R
""""" @J c MAKBREERFENTH
MEETETAMEENRSRER
KREBEENS  AEBHBE G
CiElEoEZ SNl R RS o gl
BXHIWANFEFEEDL MG
e DM RAEZZTNFHERANE
LT o

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from structured
note and bank loans. All bank loans bear interest at market
rates.

For the bank loans, when appropriate and at times of
interest rate uncertainty or volatility, interest rate swaps may
be used to assist in the Group’s management of interest rate
exposure. The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank
loans as at 31 March 2010 is 2.9% (2009: 6.3%).

During the year ended 31 March 2010, interest rate swaps,
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, have been entered
into to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate
exposure consistent with the Group’s policy. At 31 March
2010, the Group had interest rate swaps with a notional
contract amount of $24,133,000 (2009: $Nil) to fix the
interest rate of certain bank borrowings so as to reduce the
impact of interest rate fluctuation.

The swaps mature over the next 6.5 years, matching the
maturity of the related loans (see note 22) and have fixed
swap rates ranging from 2.63% to 2.74%. The net fair value
of swaps entered into by the Group at 31 March 2010 was
$116,000 (2009: $Nil). These amounts are recognised as
derivative financial instruments and are included within
“Trade and other payables” (note 21).

At 31 March 2010, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s profit after tax by approximately $86,000 (2009:
decreased/increased by approximately $15,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk at the balance sheet
date. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact
on the Group’s profit after tax is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expenses or income of such a change in
interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2009.
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28 &@MIAE) 28 Financial Instruments (continued)

(@) BERBREERAAEEBEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v) E¥E (iv) Currency risk
AEERGEE BRI HEEERIRA U The Group’s exposure to currency risk at the balance
EIAHMEM S B RRTITF R (2EH sheet date arose from structured note and cash at bank
F16%20) - ANETLEB AN - K& denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”) (see notes
EIEHETT, BENERER TS HIRE 16 and 20). As USD is pegged to HKD, the Group does
KEH) - not expect any significant movements in the USD/HKD

exchange rate.

V) arEE (v) Fair values
(1) BAREBINRNESRTA (1) Financial instruments carried at fair value

BRIB(E BT B IR EERDETHR— The following table presents the carrying value of financial

[¢@TA: HEIRATH=FEAQ instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet

REEER  TREWEARE date across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy

EfENEMTAELAEANE defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures,

HEEBE BEFSESRIAENA with the fair value of each financial instrument categorised

A EEEBRBEHEANEEBFE in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is

MEBRERNNHEERNEA significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are

BEMETEESE - SERY defined as follows:

EEMT :

- BEfH(E=ER) : %A - Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
EemTAESTRMSN®R quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
B(REAR)FTEAAEE identical financial instruments:

- FZEf: REUSBIA - Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
EEBRMBSH®RE - HIRA in active markets for similar financial instruments,
FTEERBAZEr HENX or using valuation techniques in which all significant
MEAEBERNOTSEEEA inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
REEERMETE AR EE: market data; and
X

- BoEHKREEH) : #A - Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
E1r] & K A E W IELA A valuation techniques in which any significant input
BIEMmSEBAANIEE is not based on observable market data.
Rifrst& A nEE

118 AWEREERAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



28 #MTR(E)

(@) HFEE

V)

REERNAEEGE)

A EE(E)

1)

BARBEIENERTAE)

28 Financial Instruments (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v)  Fair values (continued)

)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

rEH
The Group
—B-2F
2010
F—ER EFER EFZER W
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T Tt Tt Tt
$’000 $°000 $°000 $’000
=N Liabilities
PTESBIA Derivative financial
instruments - 116 - 116

RERN MTAEVEEE—E
FB_EANE=ER2HEH
RERERER -

FRARBEIENESRTAN
AV

BRT5 @ T AN REE KA
REBRAZEIFEN AR S
MTANKESHR BER_-F
—EER_FETANF=-_A=1—
B RABEDRITK

During the year there were no significant transfers
between financial instruments in Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2010 and 2009 except as follows:

KEH
The Group
—E-EF —ZETNEF
2010 2009

IRESE AREE IRE$5E AL

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount value amount value

Tt T Tt Tt

$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000

BE Asset

BB EK AT E/EAM  Other financial asset

TEEE at amortised cost 2,341 2,279 2,341 2,016

JRE AR A PR /B8 B SR IR ) 2
HHR - 28 MAERBEBRMNEI
B, fE& - At WEERAE
BEEETK-

Amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and recoverable/repayable on demand. Given these terms,
it is not meaningful to disclose their fair values.
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28 &#MTRE)
(a) BISEABEERAABEE)
Vi) AAEEEE

28 Financial Instruments (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(vi) Estimation of fair value

(1) REERATENEOEREE
AR BEERERRRERENMGET
RE HPoERAESRTA
BER TSR ETIR

@ THEemIE
MNEEHANN A A BERKE
BHSHNETRANNRKRES
MEMET °

@) ANEEAAREEMHFER
AEERKB T -TF=A=
T—HEBEBRITARFEHN X
AR ZNRANEENEEE
ERFRSBT A - FTAN XM

1

Other financial asset at amortised cost

The fair value is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of interest rate swap is determined by
discounting the future cash flows of the contracts at the
current market interest rates.

Interest rate used for determining fair value

The Group uses the interest rate curve of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) as of 31 March 2010
plus an adequate constant credit spread to discount
financial instruments. The interest rates used are as

T follows:
REHE
The Group
—2-%F —TTNF
2010 2009
REERATENHMEREE  Other financial asset at amortised cost 1.78% 5.96%
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 0.69% - 2.33% -
(b) @I ERER (b) Categories of financial instruments
KEH VNN
The Group The Company
—E-TF —ZTTNF ZB-TF _—TThHF
2010 2009 2010 2009
Tt T T Tt
$’°000 $’000 $°000 $’000
TREE Financial assets
B kB AR Loans and receivables

—FEYRK - Debtors, deposits and
e RIER R prepayments 80,009 75,101 207 207
—EWMIB ARIZIE - Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 363,973 383,533

— DA SRR ABER) - Other financial asset at
HEthemEE amortised cost 2,341 2,341 - -
—HRITFRNR® — Bank deposits and cash 210,042 181,098 205 158
292,392 258,540 364,385 383,898
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28 #MTR(E)

(b)

29
(a)

TR TERERI(E)

28 Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Categories of financial instruments (continued)

REE ¥ /N
The Group The Company
“E-2F —TENF —E-TF —TTNHF
2010 2009 2010 2009
F5 F7 5 F7
$°000 $'000 $’000 $'000
A Y= Financial liabilities
AR BERTA Financial instruments at fair
 BEMEMIA  vavethoughproftorloss 116 -
1R SER AR Amortised cost
-2l eke — Rental deposits received 1,614 1,907 - -
—EER M EET B H - Creditors and accrued expenses 222,382 189,143 1,339 1,320
— [ERP B A RIFRIE — Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 27,875 27,889
—RITER - Bank loans 45,265 6,020 - -
e 269,761 197,000 29,214 . 29,209
269,877 197,070 29,214 29,209
ik 29 Commitments

RZZE—TF=A=+—HBRERT XK
TR T IRR MR B R B A AR T

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2010 not provided

for in the financial statements were as follows:

—E—-FF —ETNF

2010 2009

T T

$°000 $°000

EEES! Contracted for 968 29,560
BREERTY Authorised but not contracted for 31,814 99,270
32,782 128,830

R-E-—TF=A=+—BRENHER
EEBREN& —EFRRERMIP LA
S A Y FR1829,944,0007( — T E N4
116,611,0007T) ° ZZAKERIBEEMNE W
REENEBNRPEBER -

Mo R—F-FF=A=+—H K&
ERECEREENAOBEARENT X
AREMBREARBEEFORMAER
10,408,0007t( = T F J1 4F : 12,487,000
L) °

Included in capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2010
is an amount of $29,944,000 (2009: $116,611,000) for the future
development of the new central food processing plant to facilitate

the Group’s long term business growth.

In addition, the Group had outstanding other commitments of
$10,408,000 at 31 March 2010 (2009: $12,487,000) in respect
of the contracting fee for operation of a fast food restaurant not

provided for in the financial statements.
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RZZ—ZF=ZA=+—H BETTH
BHEARETREBNORENEHE
MRBEREMT

—FK Within 1 year
—FHRERFEA
hFE After 5 years

AEBUNEEHERATOWE - BLM
ERVTRP—FENF ALBEEE
BEIMBRES  ERAEKRTENE
BT HENKBEATGERE R
miSHEE - AAHEBILEEFINE20%
(ZZTNF  9%E20%)SNELREEH
HERETE - BETBREELAERNA -

AEBESHEBLAEWE R_TB—F
F=A=+—0  RET@®ERHSHEAE
RIEHATE B 18 I E K &K 2 F FUOE 4258
£2,400,0007t( — & & N, F : 5,765,000
JT) °

RZZE—ZF=A=+—H  ARQEER}
ET2EMBRARESHNIZBERREM
RITEAEEMRRITIELER -

REEH  EFREBREBERTHEARRT
WEREWAEETIA - REEH » AQF
REBZERBAENGEANEBAMEWNE
ARIEREMEB{EE%79,608,0007T(=
ZZNEF 1 36,149,0007T) © EHZIERNR
EEHHEREE -

AN B 4 G R R IR SRR AR A A A
FRZREAABEEENSEMAE  ME
BARSER -

RREEEBRAF
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After 1 year but within 5 years

At 31 March 2010, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
are payable as follows:

—EENF
2009

T
$'000
172,706
219,653
30,064

422,423

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to nine years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased to reflect market rentals.
The contingent rent payments are determined based on 9% to
20% (2009: 9% to 20%) of the turnover over the base rents and
are excluded from the information disclosed above.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be
received under non-cancellable subleases at 31 March 2010 are
$2,400,000 (2009: $5,765,000).

At 31 March 2010, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the balance sheet date, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Company under the
guarantee arrangement. The maximum liability of the Company
at the balance sheet date under the guarantee is the amount of
the facilities drawn down by all the subsidiaries that are covered
by the guarantee, being $79,608,000 (2009: $36,149,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and
there is no transaction price.
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EXHABEES

BRAEA S = B B D T IRBR VX 5l
RO REBEITT T EXRBEH TR
5

(a) EWMMF7ATINE  BREEASRN
e AENARTZEENRE - e
BEAFEEIBETAAIR(2HME
5(b)) °

ERFEERN ARG —RHMERRM
FERA—BEYWE - FEMPengtor
BEHRYER  MPengtoll|fl—H A%
FETEANEREHENETER
WA o BRBEERIENE
= FREAMESERHA1,437,000
TT(ZZEZNF  1,247,0007T) °

(c) EAFERN  MERERTFALA—
REBARFAE  UWEREURE
BR—FTEEWE - TR
FE /5,000 (ZEZ N4 1 180,000
JT) °

ERFEERN ARG —RHMERRM
AIEMEA—IBEYE - FIENZRERD
BEANBERBTERERBAL -
ERBTERBERBLENEL - F
AFTE A ®HE S & MH &1,136,0007T
—ZTT R 1,966,0007T) °

BHB®RFARER

(a) NEERER  AEBHETETHEE
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(b)) BEFNEERREZDIRAHE -
BRAFBEHIIRMET0 -
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Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(a) Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid
to the Company’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff cost” (see note 5(b)).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from New Champion. New Champion is wholly
beneficially owned by Pengto, a company beneficially owned
by a trust of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary
object. In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of
New Champion. Rental expenses incurred during the year
amounted to $1,437,000 (2009: $1,247,000).

(c) During the year, New Champion agreed to grant a licence
to a subsidiary of the Company to use a storeroom in Hong
Kong. Licence fee paid during the year amounted to $5,000
(2009: $180,000).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from Front Land. The ultimate beneficial owners
of Front Land are Mr Lo Hoi Chun, who is a cousin of Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, and his associate. Rental expenses
incurred during the year amounted to $1,136,000 (2009:
$1,966,000).

Non-adjusting Post Balance Sheet Events

(a) After the balance sheet date, the Group disposed of certain
leasehold land and buildings and investment properties.
Further details are disclosed in note 17.

(b) After the balance sheet date the Directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 10.

Comparative Figures

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
Presentation of financial statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating
segments, certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to current year’s presentation and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2010.
Further details of these developments are disclosed in note 2.
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Notes 14, 24 and 28 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment, fair value
of share options granted and financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to assess whether there is any indication that
a fixed asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the fixed asset is estimated. Changes in
facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the conclusion
of whether an indication of impairment exists and revised
estimates of recoverable amounts, which would affect profit or
loss in future years.

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are material
changes from previous estimates.

As described in note 13(b), the investment properties are stated
at fair value based on the valuation performed by an independent
firm of professional surveyors after taking into consideration the
net rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates including
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition and expected future market rents. In relying on the
valuation report, the management has exercised their judgement
and are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
current market condition.
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34 Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)
(d) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are transactions during the ordinary course of
business, for which calculation of the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which
such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the management’s
expectation of future taxable profit that will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

Provision for long service payments

As explained in note 26(a), the Group makes provision for long
service payments in accordance with the requirement of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The Group has based
the estimation on its recent employees’ statistics and adopted
certain assumptions in assessing the provision for long service
payments. It is possible that these assumptions adopted by the
Group in assessing the provision for long service payments may
not be indicative of the future situation. Any increase or decrease
in the provision would affect profit or loss in future years.

Provision for reinstatement costs

As explained in note 26(b), the Group makes provision for
reinstatement costs based on the best estimate of the expected
costs to be incurred upon expiry of the respective rental
agreements, which are subject to uncertainty and might differ
from the actual costs incurred. Any increase or decrease in the
provision would affect profit or loss in future years.
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35 BERGEARESEBE_S—FF=H 35 Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards

E+—HLEFEEMBOERT « HEL and Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective for
MBRETRERPCE the Year Ended 31 March 2010
HEAPBHETERD  BEgMAg Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
BEEMEEEE_Z—ZEF=-A=+—H has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
IEFEHARER - TR BERY BEHREIK interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
FMZIBER] « FTERIFZRE March 2010 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements:
ELT B
R EFRE
BETHEEN

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

(BEMBIREER)EIR (LIER]) (a0 —ZEENF+A—H
HKFRS 3 (Revised), Business combinations 1 July 2009
(BEEGERDFE27HRIEF [ 4R E B ISRk MBS P 7k —ZEENF+A—H
Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements 1 July 2009
(BEGERDEISGRIER] [EMITE : BRANE-—aERKEAHIER] —ZETHFtA—H
Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and 1 July 2009

measurement — Eligible hedged items

(B% (ERHBREREZES) [MEBADIKIERSEE ] —ZEENF+A—H
RE)E1TH

HK(FRIC) 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to owners 1 July 2009

ZEENHEBIBRE LD BCE —ZEENF+A—H

F—_E—FF—H—H

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 1 July 2009

or 1 January 2010

126 XARERESRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



35 ERHBERKREEE—_S—HFE=H 35 Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards

=+—HILEFEEMERT - R and Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective for
MRTWARBRHTE(E) the Year Ended 31 March 2010 (continued)
AEBEIEAEELIEET - FERIFZE The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
HYIRERBENTEFTZE - 2B A the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period
IF REBEBERMELEET - FER/IA of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
RRENGHREZERNSERADRMNE them is unlikely to result in significant impacts on the Group’s or
EEBEFIBTSARR - the Company’s results of operations and financial position.
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TEMBAR
Principal Subsidiaries

(LLBE5IR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AL, BRfT/ AR FERG
AEER RURLEHE afERFE ZAERN TEER
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Particulars of issued/  Percentage of shares
Name of company operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
=E:3 5f:3
directly indirectly
BEERBRARF BE 2RBREEIT - 100% MEFRE
Benley Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
Cision Development Limited BA REREET - 100% EEEE
Cision Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of a restaurant
ARECRINERERAR i 10,000 BRAETT - 100% ®ERR
Fairwood (Shenzhen) Development Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of $1 each Investment holding
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* REABREE/EF 579437 REREELIEL 100% - REER
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin 579,437 shares of US$0.01 each Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong
ARERE (EB)ERAR i 2RBRAEEIT - 100% HEREER
Fairwood Fast Food (Management) Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Restaurant licences holding
AREREBRAF BF  OREBREREEIOTR - 100% EEEEREE
Fairwood Fast Food Limited HongKong 579437 EX ZHEELRH Operation of a chain
FREEIT of fast food restaurants

10 ordinary shares of $10 each
and 579,437 non-voting deferred

shares of $10 each
Fairwood Trademark B.V.. Limited" KBERREE/ AR i EIRESH - 100% HEEE
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin 1 share of US$1 Trademark holding
Islands/Hong Kong
LERRERAA BE 2RBREEIT - 100% @ EEHREE
Finemax Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of a fast food

restaurant
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AL/

R R S B
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

N

B&f7/

Particulars of issued/

ARAFRERD
ZEDL

Percentage of shares

Name of company operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BE A%
directly indirectly
MERRBRAT 0 2RBRAEEIT - 100% @ MEZE
Great Choice Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
VERRARAT 0 2RBHRAEEIT - 100% @ MEZE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
AZBERBERAT 0 2RERAEEIT - 100% @ MEZE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
REBRRERAT &h 2RBRAEEIT - 100% @ MEZE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
BERBRERERAT 0 2RBRAEEIT - 100% KEREREE
Professional Institutional Catering Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of canteens
and a restaurant
ERERBRAG 0 2RBRAEEIT - 100%  MEZE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
FEERBERAT 0 2RBHRAEEIT - 100% @ MEZE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
RYRREREBRA R i 2,600,000% 7T - 100% EEEERERE
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Limited * The PRC US$2,600,000 Operation of a chain of
fast food restaurants
ERERBRAT 0 2RBHRAEEIT - 100% @ MEZE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ERERARAT 0 2RBRAEEIT 100% - EERGEN
Starwide Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Management of food
counters
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TEMBAR

Principal Subsidiaries

(LLB¥SIR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AL, BEf/ AR FERG
NRER RURBEHE aMERFE ZAERN TEEK
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Particulars of issued/  Percentage of shares
Name of company operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
B 5F:3
directly indirectly
AAERERAF &h 2RBREEIT - 100% @ MEZRE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
FRERERAA &E 2RBREEIT - 100% @ MEZRE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
RERRERAA &E 2RBREEIT - 100% @ MEZRE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
BEERERAT &E 2RBREEIT - 100% @ MEZRE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ERERERAT BE 2RBREEIT - 100% @ MEZRE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
(A ERRIWIER B FE TR EHFTEZ) (*Companies not audited by KPMG)
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@ R-ZE—ZHFE=A=+—H  IHEEH
R BESMEZNONB AR HRES
FL RS RN R EE R BEEF
BHIB8% (ZEZENF  8%) 6% (ZEE
NEF7%) -

b) BHEBLRREERDEITEERSE -

(b)

At 31 March 2010, the financial statements of the subsidiaries
not audited by KPMG reflect total turnover and total net assets
constituting approximately 8% (2009: 8%) and 6% (2009: 7%)
respectively of the related consolidated totals.

None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.



AEELFUHME

Five-year Group Financial Summary

(LBE5IR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE=A=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March
—ZE-ZF5 ZEZTNF ZETN\F ZZTtF ZTTRF

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
T Tt Tt T Tt
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
E i Results:
EER Turnover 1,562,348 1,465,503 1,433,476 1,204,863 986,700
fed=pinpl Profit from operations 111,718 94,812 121,169 95,818 73,998
bR Finance costs (1,332) (199) (1,361) (2,829) (721)
R B A A Profit before taxation 110,386 94,613 119,808 92,989 73,277
Pt Income tax (17,117) (14,591) (18,781) (8,320) 1,806
ViNANETE: £l 4 Profit attributable to
ity equity shareholders
of the Company 93,269 80,022 101,027 84,669 75,083
EEREE Assets and liabilities:
BEEE Fixed assets 398,892 307,598 306,952 277,407 245234
B EEMTEN  Prepayment for
fixed assets - 3,683 - - -
G Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
BENMEeES Rental deposits paid 40,861 38,742 29,261 31,897 22,619
Bt mEE Other financial asset 2,341 2,341 39,345 40,439 -
IRERITEE B Deferred tax asset 37 35 25 488 3,326
mEVEE Current assets 278,613 248,928 248,693 226,546 190,964
EEHAE Total assets 721,745 602,328 625,277 577,778 463,144
mEIAaE Current liabilities (234,629)  (196,766) (232,061) (218,468) (147,167)
EmBIAE Non-current liabilities (74,526) (30,672) (23,263) (25,478) (26,836)
EEFE Net assets 412,590 374,890 369,953 333,832 289,141
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HE_ZZN\FZRA=+—HILFENESES
BERCHEERAENIERAEEEERIMN
BR) UWHEHE-_ZTAF=ZA=+—HI
FEMBEAOINERG I - KIEFTE T L
WE BRI RMIELZ HEEE

AW EMSBEREFENGERBBAFLR
R AN RIT

Note:

M

Coupon expenses for the year ended 31 March 2008 has been re-
classified from cost of sales to turnover (as deductions) to conform with
the presentation adopted for the year ended 31 March 2009. The revised
presentation reflects better the nature of these transactions.

However, it is not practicable to reclassify the balances of earlier years
for comparison purposes.
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AREEMSHREN S

Investment Properties held by the Group

R-Z-ZF=A=+—¢
as at 31 March 2010

1t Bh BERAZ HEH
Location Existing use Term of lease
A BRI

=

[& 3% Fa

BREEN— 2

£51035% 104055 4 Bk T Ef

Shop Unit Nos. 1035 — 1040 Shops Medium-term
on Level 2,

Lowu Commercial Plaza,

Guangchang South Road,

Luohu District,

Shenzhen,

PRC

R

B HIEE2ET05

BEXERE

ABE1AEAT RA2BERT LA R

3IZA3 K P13SRALK E L

ML4 1516111 L1213

L14&L315E BB aE AL A RABAL H HA
Units A1 and A2 on Warehouses and Medium-term
14th Floor of Block A, and car parking

Private Car Parking Space Nos. A3 and P13 and spaces

Lorry Parking Space Nos. L4, L5, L6,

L11, L12, L13, L14 and L31 on

3rd Floor,

Po Yip Building,

Nos. 62-70 Texaco Road,

Tsuen Wan,

New Territories
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o 5 1k
Store Address

KREREE

FAIRWOOD FAST FOOD RESTAURANTS

TE

Hong Kong

4k

Address

PIIR T EIERR41A-435R R IEEm IS T Shop Nos. 4-9, G/F, Smithfield Court,
4-9%7 48 41A-43 Smithfield, Kennedy Town

PRIR T FA B PR 1885 A B F A 0 Shop No. 36 on First Floor, Hong Kong Plaza,
112 36 48 No. 188 Connaught Road West

IR 2 AKEP38-485 B FE A E2FIE 2/F, Manning House, 38-48 Queen’s Road Central,

Central

IR E R KB I6SHIEFIEIHZ2TIE Shop 203, 2/F, Welland Plaza, Welland Building,
20355k & 368 Queen’s Road Central, Central

AR -BEE B TIETE B Concession HOK 53, In-Town Check-In Hall,
REHIEHOK 53 MTR Hong Kong Station, 1 Harbour View Road

SEERE16TRE SRR L T B Shop B, G/F and Shop A2 & A3, Upper G/F,
KE g A2 A3 Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,

Admiralty

SEERBE129 KRB/ TH L Shop No. G3, G/F., Bank of America Tower,
G35 12 Harcourt Road, Admiralty

BT B 1385 P BN KR Shop D1, 1/F, China Overseas Building,
1FED16H 138 Lockhart Road, Wanchai

BT E{TE128-1505RFFE KB Portion A, 1/F, Ming Fung Building,
112 A 128-150 Wanchai Road, Wanchai

T 2R RER1835E M L Shops 201-206, Hopewell Centre,
201-206%4 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

SRR ENEA1-55R SN B E RN EHE Basement of Causeway Bay Commercial

Building, Nos. 1-5 Sugar Street, Causeway Bay

B

Phone no.

2856 8688

2856 4452

2856 8661

2856 8640

2856 8662

2856 8665

2856 4451

2856 8651

2856 8659

2856 8663

2856 4458
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o JE Hh tik
Store Address

2169
Hong Kong (Continued)

bk
Address

SR IB19-23 R EEAE
0N — SR K 118

AL ERE1485RH T 15848

1t BB E R M EKiosk 6

FEILE1SREIAES (db)2E
S32-S3655 8

TS 48 8 K ATk
D 23-265% 4

GEEBEEHRIRNESEE
BHEERES 12104545

BB HE R 5 FE 2015k

FAEFHO ZHIH T 18, 20-24 2648

RS A B = B35 65 47

SBHRMEE B ESSES01,

532-533 2 535-5385% &

S0 T O A P 51 A 1 1 3R 4R
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Shop No. 1 on G/F and the whole 1/F,
Professional Building, 19-23 Tung Lo Wan Road

Shop No. 1 on the Ground Floor of No. 148
Electric Road

Kiosk 6, Basement Floor, Island Place, North Point

Shops Nos. S32-S36, 2/F, Kornhill Plaza (North),
1 Kornhill Road

Shop Nos. D 23-26, G/F, No. 25 Tai On Street,
Lei King Wan, Sai Wan Ho

M/F, Galaxy Plaza, 2 Mong Lung Street, Shaukeiwan

Shop No. 104, 1/F., Hing Tung Shopping Centre,
Shaukeiwan

Shop 201, Tin Wan Shopping Centre,
Tin Wan Estate, Aberdeen

Shops 18, 20 to 24 and 26 on the Ground
Floor of Site 2, Aberdeen Centre

Shop 5, Multi-storey Carpark, Ap Lei Chau Estate,
Ap Lei Chau

Shop Nos. 501, 532-533 and 535-538, 5/F,
Chi Fu Landmark, Pokfulam

Shop No. 113, Level 1, Hing Wah Shopping Centre,
Hing Wah Estate, Chai Wan

E]
Phone no.
2856 8682

2856 8679

2856 4457

2856 8689

2856 8669

2856 8611

2856 4453

2856 8645

2856 4461

2856 8623

2856 8683

2856 8687



bk
Address

SYHEGEEB7E - NWEAEEIN
WERFRKNELG/F

/.

N

IR B H B8R B 118

N
/

*

]+ @8 P — SR B 8 LR U
MR E A ZEIEKOW 57

fa]=m) 38 78— [El 5 H T G002-0357% 45

At ATt 40 B35 5 = [€303-30548

i AEEH3-65 BRI AE 11BAM

X AEREERES2EF255R

41 1) 55 58 Bl I8 485 SR A M R BAE b &
1/82-455 44

—+ I8 B 5 s sD-FyR h #7515
28R A

+ I&38331-36155EEEF B E =M
b 257 K 25-2657 48

EDERSE18SIR TR Dbl

AR YL B R I5 1 R A

KSR MN T NP O3E
312-313%% 4

Lower Ground Floor, Yue Hwa International Building,

No. 1 Kowloon Park Drive, No. 7 Ashley Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui

The Entire 1/F, Grand Centre, No. 8
Humphreys Avenue, Tsim Sha Tsui

Concession KOW 57, In-Town Check-In Hall,
MTR Kowloon Station, 1 Austin Road West

Shop Nos. G002-03 and Open Seating Area,
Ground Level at Elements, 1 Austin Road West

Shops 303-305, Level 3, Grand Century Place,
Mongkok

Portion A of 1/F, Hung Wai Building,
3-5 Fa Yuen Street, Mongkok

Shop No. F25, 2/F, Oi Man Shopping Centre,
Oi Man Estate, Homantin

Shops 2-4 Lower G/F, Ka Hing Lau, Ka Wai Chuen,

48 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hung Hom

Shop 2, G/F, 5D-F Ma Hang Chung Road,
To Kwa Wan

Shop 2 and Shop 25-26, G/F., Chong Chien Court,

No. 331-361 To Kwa Wan Road

G/F, Precious Industrial Centre,
No. 18 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan

Shop 1, Hoi Lai Shopping Centre, Hoi Lai Estate,
Sham Shui Po

Shop 312-313, 3/F, Dragon Centre,
37K Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po

&5

Phone no.

2856 8628

2856 4468

2856 8646

2856 4460

2856 8655

2856 8657

2856 8695

2856 8633

2856 8621

2856 8678

2856 8691

2856 8685

2856 8637



o JE Hh tik
Store Address

hRE#)

Kowloon (Continued)

bk
Address

GO FTEE ST
BERS—1E125B-12750 4
KRB & 42 Fa i T~9-135%

LERERWBRERLE_E

R
i

BN ERIPEE L OSIES1 754

¢

R R WETF L1558
NEEBE S ESORBRIEES S

1181085044

FEABTTRRARSE = H1E

F210-2125% 48

BEMRIT51-635F B A= T 2557 48

HIEFARECS R EEE S 11E 116574

BUERE RS 5B 1 [EB-85t A

BUR B E3025R A4 < S B 148 157 4

EMESERERE S FOE1REN

32123355

48 P E 15212 20651 4
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Shop Nos. 125B-127, First Floor, Fu Cheong
Shopping Centre, Sham Mong Road,
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon

Shops 9-13, G/F, Block 42, Shek Kip Mei Estate

Level 2, Wang Fai Centre, Wang Tau Hom Estate,
Lok Fu

Shop 317, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre,
Tsz Wan Shan

Shop 1, Market Block, Ping Shek Estate, Choi Hung
Unit 108, 1/F, Commercial & Garage Block
of Richland Garden, 80 Wang Kwong Road,

Kowloon Bay

Shops F210-212, Podium One, Phase Il
Amoy Plaza, 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road

Shops 2, G/F, Mido Mansion,
51-63 Yue Man Square, Kwun Tong

Shop 116, 1/F, Kwun Tong Plaza,
68 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong

Shop B8, Basement 1, Commercial Complex,
Laguna City, Kwun Tong

Shop No.1, 1/F, Millennium City 6, No. 392 Kwun
Tong Road, Kwun Tong

Shops 32 & 33, Unit 1, Level 5, Sceneway Garden,
8 Sceneway Road, Lam Tin

Shop No. 206, 2/F,, Lei Yue Mun Plaza

E]
Phone no.

2856 8638

2856 8607

2856 8627

2350 4863

2323 8123

2856 8629

2856 8670

2856 8605

2856 8694

2856 8632

2856 4465

2856 8690

2856 8671



bk
Address
1S EREMIBEMRIS1025% 1 T

# R A TEE S — BEHD T 857 M
5B = R TNOSR AR

7% BB O B2 AR BE 1 SR BT B & B 1 EiE
126-1275% 47

P& BB ER O — BRI —
204 K207 Adf

1SR = B RR e R AP IR 15
£ [BRO25R 4

W BRI R 51 B B3R A

WHEAERILEREB3S

DHESFEIEI2RE

Y HBES A IR T RES
AIE502 M 502A%

DABEILFERES
55— [Z5-85% 4

Y H BT ER6085E 581 L ES
= 1E364A
KNI B R E BRI 55504

KB == S05 18202574

M EaZERIREREIS 114580 T

Shop 102, G/F, Po Lam Shopping Centre,
Po Lam Estate, Tseung Kwan O

Shop 8, Block 2 & Shop 9, Block 3, G/F,
Verbena Heights, Tseung Kwan O

Shop 126-127, 1/F, The Lane, 15 Pui Shing Road,
Hang Hau, Tseung Kwan O

Shop Nos. 204 & 207A, Level 2, Metro City Phase |,
Tseung Kwan O

Shop No. R02 on Second Level of the Commercial
Development of Metro Town, Tseung Kwan O

Shop 3, Commercial Block 1, Kwong Yuen Estate,
Shatin

B35, Stationer Restaurant, Tai Wai Railway Station,
Shatin

Shop 32, Level 3, Shatin Plaza, Shatin

Shop Nos. 502 & 502A, Level 5, Grand Central Plaza,

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, Shatin

Shop Nos. 5-8 on Level 2 of Sunshine Bazaar,
Ma On Shan

Shop No. 364A, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza,
Ma On Shan

Shop 5, Wan Tau Tong Shopping Centre,
Wan Tau Tong Estate, Tai Po

Shop 202, 2/F. Fu Shin Shopping Centre,
Fu Shin Estate, Tai Po

Shop 114, G/F, Wah Ming Shopping Centre,
Wah Ming Estate, Fanling

&5

Phone no.

2856 8610

2856 8643

2856 8667

2856 8692

2856 8696

2856 8613

2856 8622

2856 8641

2856 4463

2856 8664

2856 8634

2856 8624

2856 8699

2856 8617



o JE Hh tik
Store Address

R
New Territories (Continued)

bk
Address

3 58 Bt AN 4E AN 185
wREET —HAIG235k 48

e E 5 — [E86-88,
51B, 52C57 44
FRKRFIA RO -65R &AL

KK E R B 7 5 25- 285 #

KA R BE R R 395k LK B S g
405-65R4H

BREFBRRZHSH T —E1185%

BRI SR —RREmEE 12
1015048

EBL R ERE S T 25k
2B O E B 72
209-2115% &8
HFEFAEEISLT, 181-182%7 48
R STIL R I I5 —18125-1305% 48
FEE B0 B ER 0O
2FIE 28R4

2B E L EI08R = F B RS FEIE1 74
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Shop G23, Regentville Phase |, 8 Wo Mun Street,
Luen Wo Hui, Fanling

Shop Nos. 51B, 52C, 86-88 on Level 2,
Fanling Town Centre, Fanling

Tin Ping Cooked Food Centre, Stall Nos. 1-6,
Tin Ping Estate, Sheung Shui

Shop Nos. 25 to 28, Podium Floor,
Choi Yuen Shopping Centre, Choi Yuen Estate,
Sheung Shui

Shop Nos. 405-6, Level 4, Landmark North,
No. 39 Lung Sum Avenue, Shek Wu Hui,
Sheung Shui

Shop LG118, Cheung Hang Shopping Centre,
Cheung Hang Estate, Tsing Vi

Shop No. 101 on 1/F, Greenfield Garden,
Commercial Centre at Phase 2,
No.1 Fung Shue Wo Road, Tsing Yi

Shop No. 2, On Yam Shopping Centre,
On Yam Estate, Kwai Chung

Shops 209-211, Fu Pik House, Tai Wo Hau Estate,
Tsuen Wan

Shop Nos. 181-182, Level 1, Metroplaza,
Kwai Fong, Kwai Chung

Shop Nos. 125-130, First Floor, Kwai Fong
Shopping Centre, Kwai Fong Estate, Kwai Chung

Portion of 2/F, Fou Wah Centre,
210 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan

Shop 17, Level 3, Discovery Park-Shopping Centre,
398 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan

B

Phone no.

2856 8653

2856 8666

2856 8608

2856 8697

2856 8639

2856 8616

2856 8684

2481 5017

2856 8620

2856 4456

2856 4462

2856 8614

2856 4466



bk
Address

2R HessR &M A O —HA
SHE3ATTRES

BPIR =HE% _1#213%

PR A TR A RIS 1065 T

P B LIERE M T69-745% 4

T PTIRBSE I B P 5 CX3-65R 4

PS5 1L383335% = BB IEE g5 ~
118-119%% 48

P PI T EYS % — Hi1 74838, 5B, 6-9,

16-17A%

P22 3% 168-23655% /@ 8k 1 655% i

FLPTE MIBE M5 — 18108574

TCRIKEEAEB AR T R —12

JUEABR TR 5 105-107 5748

TERARKEZ AL’ 5

I N A16855 i

FIKEI KB FE12-185% 52 4158 FE 55 —HA

G83, G83A, G88 M G8SA%H

RKERIm S S N 2AH

Shop 3A1, 3/F, City Landmark |,
68 Chung On Street, Tsuen Wan

Shop 213, Leung King Shopping Centre,
Leung King Estate, Tuen Mun

Shop 106, Commercial Centre, Kin Sang Estate,
Tuen Mun

Shops 69-74, Chi Lok Fa Yuen, Tuen Mun

Shops CX8-5, Siu Lun Court Shopping Centre,
Siu Lun Court, Tuen Mun

Shops 118-119, G/F, Hanford Plaza,
333 Castle Peak Road, Tuen Mun

Shop Nos. 3B, 5B, 6-9, 16-17A on 1/F,
Tuen Mun Town Plaza Phase I, Tuen Mun

Shop No. 65, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road,

Tuen Mun

Shop No. 108, First Floor, Po Tin Shopping
Centre, Tuen Mun

G/F & 1/F, Winland Building,
Shui Che Kwun Street, Yuen Long

Shops 105-107, Long Ping Commercial Centre,
Long Ping Estate, Yuen Long

Shop A168, Kingswood Richly Plaza, Tin Shui Wai,
Yuen Long

Shop Nos. G83, G83A, G88 & G88A on
G/F of Phase 1, Kingswood Ginza,
12-18 Tin Yan Road, Tin Shui Wai

Shop No. 2A, Ground Floor, Tin Shui
Shopping Centre, Tin Shui Wai

&5

Phone no.

2856 8626

2856 8612

2856 8618

2856 8625

2856 8631

2856 8635

2856 8668

2856 8686

2856 4454

2856 8609

2856 8630

2856 8636

2856 8693

2856 4455
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Store Address

R
New Territories (Continued)

Hb it
Address
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The PRC
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1/F, Yuen Long Commercial Centre,
18-24 Kau Yuk Road, Yuen Long

Shop Nos. 239 and 243, Second Floor, Chung Fu
Shopping Centre (Phase 2), Tin Shui Wai

Shop No. 18, Podium First Floor,
Caribbean Bazaar, Caribbean Coast,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

Unit No. 7T090, Departures Check-in Hall,
Passenger Terminal Building, Hong Kong
International Airport, No. 1 Cheong Hong Road,
Lantau Island

Ground Floor, Datan Edifice, Heping Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen

Shop Nos. 1028-1034, on Level 2,
Lowu Commercial Plaza, Guangchang South
Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen

M/F, District A, Railway Station Building,
LLuohu District, Shenzhen

Shop No. GA-23, Ground Floor,
Lobby of Railway Station of East Guangzhou,
Guangzhou

Shop 0304B, Basement 1, Hengbao Plaza,
133 Baohua Road, Liwan District, Guangzhou

Basement 1, Xin Du Hui, 234 Zhong
Shan Liu Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou

Shop 1WS059, Basement 1, Guangzhou
Dongman Xincheng Plaza, 1 Jixiang Road,

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou

E5F
Phone no.
2856 8649

2856 4464

2856 4459

2856 8698

B
Phone no.

755-2556 8140

755-8232 6136

755-8233 9123

20-6130 0267

20-8124 2908

20-8130 7658

20-8333 8821
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Shop 048, Basement 1, and Shop 106A,
Ground Floor, 829-831 Renmin North Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou

Shop No. BO1, First Floor, 258-262 Enning Road,

Liwan District, Guangzhou

Basement 1, 121 Linhe East Road,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou

Shop No. 10183, Basement 1, Dongfang Baotai
Shopping Plaza, 63 Linhe Road Central,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou

Shop Nos. 2C01, 2C01-1, Second Floor,
Jincheng Plaza, 31 Xiuguan Main Rood,
Huadu District, Guangzhou

Shop Nos. 237-243, 245-247, 2D11,
First Floor, Baihua Plaza, 33 Zumiao Road,
Chancheng District, Foshan

Shop 2G001, First Floor, Tianyou Cheng,
63 Ronggui Guizhou Road Central,
Shunde District, Foshan

Shop 6F-02, Joy City, Xidang, Xicheng District,
Beijing

&5

Phone no.

20-8890 0918

20-8194 7072

20-3824 0122

20-3809 6177

20-8683 8231

757-8321 3260

757-2881 9352

10-5971 6101
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BOILING TEA

ik BE

Address Phone no.

P9 54R 22 5 168-23655 & #6455 i Shop No. 64, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, 2856 8676

Tuen Mun

RXit )

BUDDIES CAFE

ik BE

Address Phone no.

RUR | SRR S E AL R 5 e [T & Shop Nos. 29 and 30 on Podium First Floor 2856 8652
—1£29-3057 4 of Caribbean Bazaar, Caribbean Coast,

Tung Chung, Lantau Island

D HERNESE = E125 4 Shop 12, Block 3, Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre, 2856 8673
Kwong Yuen Estate, Shatin

—ERXaXHE

THE LEAF RESTAURANT

ik B

Address Phone no.

M RUBR LB REES (L) Shop Nos. S37-S38, 2/F, Kornhill Plaza (North), 2856 8648
21#S37-S385 44 1 Kornhill Road, Quarry Bay

BTXE

KENTING TEA HOUSE

ik B

Address Phone no.

N RIRIERSSR > E LS Unit 8 on L11 of Mega Box, Enterprise Square Five, 2856 8674
Megabox 11#£8%E 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay

144 FREREERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



jt'l_mg FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED AREZEBER A A
2/F TRP Commercial Centre 18 Tanner Road North Point Hong Kong

Fairwood FtitaRsE18ERMET 0218 Tel 2856 7111 Fax 2165 1908
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